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ORDER OF REFERENCE

House or CoMAOXNS,
THURSDAY, January 27, 1910.

Whereas it appears by a return made to this House during the pres.ent Session,
being Sessional Paper 42a, that Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden, late Chief Engineer of the
National Transcontinental Railway, in a letter dated 25th June, 1909, addressed to .the
Commissioners, resigning his position as such Chief Engineer, uses t]}e following
language: “In view of the general disregard of my instructions, and having lost con-
fidence in the engineering staff, I have concluded to resign my position as Chl‘ex
Engineer ”; and in a second letter, dated 26th June, 1909, addressed to the Commis-
sioners, the said Hugh D. Lumsden writes as follows: “Referring to my letter of
yesterday, wherein I stated that T have lost confidence in the engineering staff, T-beg
to state that this does not apply to the whole staff, but applies only to a portion of
the staff, who were responsible for the measurement, classification, supervision ar}d
inspection of considerable portions in District ‘B’ and east of Rennie Crossing, in
Distriet ¢ F,’ lately gone over by me ”;

And whereas, while this House deems it not desirable to take any action which
might prejudice the position of either of the parties to the arbitration proceedings now
in progress between the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company and the said Com-
+missioners, yet the said recited allegations of said Hugh D. Lumsden, stated by him as
the reasons for his resignation of the said position of Chief Engineer, are, in the
opinion of this House, of such great public interest and involve such grave charges
against a portion of the engineering staff of the Transcontinental Railway .as to make
it desirable that the same should be investigated by a Committee of this House;

Therefore, it is resolved, That a Special Committee of five members of the House,
to be named hereafter, be appointed to investigate the said charges and allegations of
the said Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the said engineering staff of the said
railway; that such Committee have power to send for persons, papers and records, to
examine persons on oath or affirmation, and to report from time to time.

Attest.
THOS. B. FLINT,
Clerk of the House.

: Trurspay, February 3, 1910.
Ordered, That the said Committee be composed of seven instead of five members,

viz. :—

Messrs. Geoffrion,
Macdonald,
Clarke (Essex),
Wilson (Laval),
Lennox,
Barker, and
Crothers.

Attest.
THOS. B. FLINT,
: Clerk of the House.

(13
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Fripay, February 18, 1910.
Ordered, That leave be granted the said Committee to sit while the House is in
session,
Attest.

THOS. B. FLINT,
Clerk of the House.

Tuespay, Feb.- 22, 1910.

Ordered, That leave be granted the said Committee to have their proceedings
and any evidence taken by them printed from day to day for the use of the Com-
mittee, and that Rule 72 be suspended in reference thereto.

Attest.
THOS. B. FLINT,
Clerk of the House.

WeDNESDAY, February 23, 19190.

Ordered, That leave be granted the said Committee to employ counsel for the
purpose of assisting them in the investigation of the matters referred to them.
Attest. 3

THOS. B. .FLINT,
Clerk of the House.
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REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE

FIRST REPORT.
Frioay, February 18, 1910.
The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations made
by Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the engineering staff of the National Trans-
continental Railway beg leave to present the following as their First Report:—

Your Committee recommend that leave be granted to them to sit while the House
is in session.

All which is respectfully submitted.

VICTOR GEOFFRION,
Chairman.

SECOND REPORT.

Tuespay, February 22, 1910.
The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations made
by Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the engineering staff of the National Trans-
continental Railway beg leave to present the following as their Second Report:—
| Your Committee recommend that their Proceedings and any Evidence taken by
]

them be printed from day to day for the use of the Committee, and that Rule 72 be
suspended in reference thereto.

All which is respectfully submitted.

VICTOR GEOFFRION,
i Chairman.

THIRD REPORT.

Wepxespay, February 23, 1910-

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations made
by Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the engineering staff of the National Trans-
continental Railway beg leave to present the following as their Third Report:—

Your Committee recommend that leave be granted to them to employ counsel for

! the purpose of assisting them in the investigation of the matters referred to them.

All which is respectfully submitted.

VICTOR GEOFFRION,

Chairman.

FOURTH REPORT.

Tuespay, March 22, 1910.
The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations
made by Mr. Hugh Lumsden against a portion of the Engineering Staff of the

' National Transcontinental Railway beg leave to present the following as their Fourth
\ Report :—

T
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As they find it desirable for the convenience of all the parties concerned in the
inquiry not to hold any -further meetings for the taking of evidence until the 31st
March instant, your Committee in pursuance of the power of reporting from time
to time, conferred upon them by their Order of Reference, beg to submit herewith
the Minutes of the Proceedings from the 16th day of February, the date of their
first meeting, to the 31st day of Mareh, both inclusive, together with the Minutes of
Evidence taken by them at the sittings mentioned in such proceedings.

VICTOR GEOFFRION,

Chairman.

FIFTH REPORT.

WepNEsSDAY, April 27, 1910.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations made
by Hugh D. Lumsden, against a portion of the engineering staff of the National
Transconinental Railway beg leave to present the following as their Fifth Report:—

Your committee met for organization on the 16th day of February last past, when
Mr. Geoffrion was elected chairman. Numerous sessions have since been held; the
printed record of the proceedings at such sessions is herewith submitted. Pursuant
to summons Mr. Lumsden appeared before the committee at its meeting on the 2nd
day of February, and stated that it was not his intention to be represented by counsel.
He was several times at different sessions asked by the chairman and other members
of the committee if it was still his desire not to be represented by counsel and he per-
sisted in such desire. (See pages 62, 65 and 91). And at the meeting of the com-
mittee on March 8 he was again asked the same question and informed that he would
be at no expense for counsel, which he stated had been his understanding. (P.135).
In view of Mr. Lumsden’s attitude, your committee obtained leave from the House to
employ counsel for the purpose of assisting them in the investigation of the matters
referred to them. Mr. F. H. Chrysler, K.C., was accordingly appointed and Mr.
Lumsden agreed to communicate with him and give him all the information possible
bearing upon the matter. Mr. R. C. Smith, K.C., appeared on behalf of the Board
of Commissioners of the National Transcontinental Railway and Mr. J. H. Moss, K.C.,
on behalf of the engineers named by Mr. Lumsden as those in whom he had lost
confidence,

The order of reference bearing date the 27th January, 1910, (p. 5) directed to your
committee to investigate certain charges and allegations made by Mr. Lumsden in
his letter of resignation dated 25th June, 1909, as modified by his letter of 26th June,
expressed in the following sentence: ‘In view of the general disregard of my
instructions and having lost confidence in the engineering staff, T have concluded to
resign my position as chief engineer, and :—referring to my letter of yesterday
wherein I stated that I have lost confidence in the engineering staff T beg to state
that this does not apply to the whole staff but applies only to a portion of the staff
who were responsible for the measurement, classification, supervision and inspection of
considerable portions in District ‘B’ and east of Rennie’s Crossing in District ‘F’
lately gone over by me.

In view of the indcfinite nature of these statements Mr. Lumsden was requested
to amplify and give further details of his allegations, and a further statement in
writing was produced by him and filed as Exhibit No. 1 (p. 71) and also a list of the
various stations, inspection of which, together with the statements made in his pres-
ence by certain of the engineers during the visit of the first hoard of arbitrators, had
as he stated caused his loss of confidence in a portion of the engineering staff. (Ex-
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hibit No. 2, pp. 73 and 79). He also filed a partial list of the names of engineers inteded
to be implicated in his charges as Exhibit No. 3, (p. 92) and a copy of what purported to
be depositions of certain engineers examined before the board of arbitrators during
the course of their visit (Exhibit 3A, p. 92). These depositions were not admitted
to the record by the committee as having the force of evidence, but as being the
statements which Mr. Lumsden swore at the time of their production were those made
in his presence which has influenced him in resigning. Mr. Lumsden when questioned
as to the statements in these depositions, to which he attached importance referred
to but two or three, and it appeared to your committee from subsequent evidence that
the engineers answered to questions put to them had not been fully or correctly trans-
scribed.

At the inception of the hearings before the committee, Mr. Lumsden stated that
he appeared only as a witness and that he did not impute any bad faith to any of
the engineers and that the issue was simply a difference between engineers as to classi-
fication.

From the whole of the evidence taken bhefore your committee and especially that
of Mr. Lumsden himself, that the substantial reason for the difference between Mr.
Lumsden and the engineers under him, arose concerning interpretation of clauses 34,
85 and 36 of the specifications, which read as follows:—

Solid Rock Eaxcavation.

34. Solid rock excavation will include all rock found in ledges or masses of

more than one cubie yard, which, in the judgment of the engineer, may be best
removed by blasting.

Loose Rock.

33. All large stones and boulders measuring more than one cubic foot, and
less than one cubie yard, and all loose rock whether in situ or otherwise, that
may be removed by hand, pick or bar, all cemented gravel, indurated clay and
other materials, that cannot, in the judgment of the engineer, be ploughed with a
ten-inch grading plough behind a team of six good horses, properly handled, and

without the necessity of blasting, although blasting may be occasionally resorted
to, shall be classified as ¢loose rock.

Common Excavalion.

36. Common excavation will include all earth, free gravel or other material of
any character whatever not classified as solid or loose rock.

36A. No classification other than of common excavation will be allowed on
material from borrow pits, except by order in writing of the engineer.

It is to be observed that the language of these clauses, as pointed out by several
of the engineers examined and admitted by Mr. Lumsden differs from that used in
corresponding clauses in the specifications used in earlier railway construction, with
which Mr. Lumsden was familiar. The real difference between Mr. Lumsden and
the engineers under him arose in connection with the classification of the peculiar
geological formation met with in very large quantity upon portions of Districts ‘F’
and ‘B’ consisting of clusters of boulders of varying sizes solidly cemented together
in masses, which according to the absolute consensus of testimony (including that of
Mr. Lumsden) could not have been removed except by continuous blasting.

This difference of opinion developed at a very early stage of construction. The
resident engineers, to whom the duty of classification as the work proceeds, is com-
mitted returned this material as solid rock, and in this had the approval of their -
immediate superiors, the division and district engineers.
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While Mr. Lumsden states in his evidence that he was dissatisfied with the clas-
sification, he continued approving and certifying the monthly estimates based upon
this classification. e was, however, eventually compelled to take some action by the
receipt of a letter from Mr. H. A. Woods, assistant chief engineer of the Grand
Trunk Pacific Railway Company, of date the Tth October, 1907, fyled as Exhibit No.
10 (page 148) in which he complained of the eclassification of material on Distriet
¢ B, particularly with reference to an alleged over-return of solid rock.

Inasmuch as the rental payable by the Grand Trunk Pacific Company to the
Crown is based upon a percentage ot the actual cost of construction, that company
has of course a direct interest in minimizing that cost, and the evidence shows that
the company exercised fully its rights under the contract of maintaining engineers
upon each district for the purpose of careful surveillance. These engineers had full
access to the work as it proceeded, as also to the records of the comimissions’ en-
- gineers, and were fully conversant with the methods of classification in vogue.

In his letter above referred. to of October 7, 1907 (Exhibit No. 10) Mr. Woods
made the following statement:—

In nearly every case where the cuttings were not entirely all ledge, the esti-
mate given for solid rock is double or more than double what it should be. In
fact the specifications had been entirely ignored and an excessive allowance made
not by reason of an error in judgment but as I understand, by special instructions
from the assistant district engineer.

And:—

¢ As before stated these over-classifications are not made through error of
judgment, nor upon the decision of the resident or division engineers, who are

fully acquainted with the character of the work, but by arbitrary orders from
their superior.

This charge in Mr. Woods’ letter engaged the very careful attention of your .
committee, but it was established that Mr. Woods withdrew the statement during an
interview held at La Tuque on the 25th October, 1907. Mr. Lumsden in his letter of
October 80, immediately after the La Tuque interview says:—

‘It appears Mr. Woods must have been in error when he stated that ¢the
specifications had been dntirely ignored and an excessive allowance made, not by
reason of an error in the judgment, but, as I understand, by special instructions
from the assistant district engineer,” or, as stated by him in the latter part of his
letter, by arbitrary orders from their superior.’ (Exhibit No. 13, p. 151.)

And when questioned respecting the La Tuque interview Mr. Lumsden said:—

Q. Did he not in the presence of all those gentlemen make a pretty full
withdrawal of it?—A. He retracted it. My recollection is he retracted that
statement altogether.

Q. And so far as you are concerned, and as far as your knowledge of your
engineers is concerned, are you able to say whether there was a tittle of truth in
Mr. Woods’ charge that the classification had been made by arbitrary instructions
from superiors?—A. No, I don’t know anything of any such instruetions.

Q. Do you believe that any such were ever given?—A. No, I can’t say that
I do.

Q. Have you any reason to suspect that any =uch were ever given?—A. I
can’t say there were. (P. 225).
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Mr. A. E. Doucet, the district engineer of District ‘B,” mot only confirmed Mr.
Lumsden’s statement that Mr., Woods had withdrawn the charge, but added that Mr.
Woods had agreed to confirm the withdrawal in ‘writing (p. 570). Other engineers
gave cvidence to the same effect. Mr. Woods was summoned before the committee and
stated in corroboration of Mr. Lumsden and Mr. Doucet that he had withdrawn the
statement. ‘

After the meeting at La Tuque above mentioned the whole question of interpreta-
tion of the specifications upon which Mr. Lumsden and his subordinary engineers
had differed was considered by a number of the leading counsel of the Dominion,
viz:—Sir Alex. Lacoste, for many years chief justice of the Province of Quebec;
Wallace Nesbitt, K.C., formerly a judge of the Supreme Court of Canada; G. F.
Shepley, K.C., E. Lafleur, K.C., C. H. Ritchie, K.C., S. Beaudin, K.C., and Donald
MacMaster, K.C. Every one of these counsel, without hesitation or qualification
expressed the opinion that the interpretation upon which the resident division and
district engineers had proceeded in their classification was the true one, and as a con-
sequence that the opinion that Mr. Lumsden maintained was untenable. The inter-
pretation of Mr. Doucet and the other engineers under Mr. Lumsden, is found in their
letters, Exhibits No. 42 and following (p. 232 et seq), and the opinions of counsel
are fyled as Exhibits No. 47 and following (p. 245 et seq). From a perusal and com-
parison of these letters and opinions, it will be seen that every one of the high legal
authorities above named, confirmed in a very positive manner the views of these en-
gineers, viz: That ‘rock in masses’ meant rocks cementea together in masses of
cver a cubic yard (even though the individual rocks should be less) which in the
opinion of the engineer could gnlx be removed by blastmg

As a result of these opinions, and after the opinion of the Deputy Minister of
Justice had been written to the commissioners (p. 159), Mr. Lumsden on January 9,
1908, made a formal written interpretation of the clauses of the specifications in
question. accompanied by a blue print of a drawing illustrating the interpretation
(p. 159). In this he said:—

I am of the opinion that rock found in ledges or.masses as specified must
(firstly) be rock, and (secondly) it must be in ledges, conglomerate form (known
as plum pudding stone), boulders or ledge rock displaced (in pieces each exceed-
ing one cubic yard in size), rock assembled, also shale rock, such as in the judg-
ment of the engineer may be best removed by blasting.

Above the diagram in the blue print indicating asembled rock are the words:

‘Rock in masses of over 1 cubic yard (assembled rock) which in the judg-
ment of the engineer can be best removed by blasting.

And at the foot of the blue print are these words: ‘To form a judgment, &e.—’

> Mr. Lumsden’s view had been that ‘rock in ledges or masses’ meant ledge rock
wn sitw or masses of detached ledge rock measuring a cubic yard. On page 229 of his
evidence he says: ‘It is the word ‘mass’ that bothers me.

Q. It is a troublesome word, isn’t 1t? Tsn’t it really the troublesome word
in the whole thing —A. The word ‘mass’ as T understood it in the specifications,
and do still, referred to masses of rock which were not boulders, but had been
detached from the ledge.

: Q. And your opinion was that it meant masses of solid rock?—A. Of rock,
solid rock.

Notylthstandm«: his formal interpretation, he seems in his mind to have clung
to his original opinion, as is apparent from his evidence found on (p. 250.)

“A. Well, T think the word “masses” referred to rock that was not boul-
ders, but masses of detached ledge rock.

Q. T understand that you modified that view, though. That was your view
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in October, 1907, but you don’t adhere to it to-day?—A. I adhere still that
masses may refer and were intended to refer to detached pieces of ledge rock.

Q. But I suppose you would be willing to extend that somewhat?—A. I
have extended it in my subsequent interpretation to a mass of rock which was, I
suppose, about two-thirds rock at any rate, or something like that, two-thirds
rock and cemented material.

Q. You subsquently admitted that view, that it meant masses of detached
ledge rock would be untenable? You have conceded that?%—A. I have conceded
it, but more on account of seeing and reading and going over these.

Q. Now, that is very instructive?—A. That there might have been a mis-
understanding.

Q. I think it is fair to us, if you still adhere to your original view, that
you should tell us; now, do you or do you not? Was your real opinion influenced
or changed by perusing the opinions of counsel or others?—A. Well, between the
opinions of counsel and the opinions of the engineers, and my consultation with
Mr. Schreiber, I did conclude to change that part of it referring to solid rock.

Q. You say you concluded to change?—A. Yes.

Q. But opinions are really not a matter of choice or volition, are they?
Were you convinced —A. I know what I understood in the first instance when
the specification was made, that it was nothing but rock.

Q. So that really, while out of deference to the numerous other opinions
expuessed, you may have consented to modify your expressed opinion, in reality
you are like a woman, convince her against her will, she holds the same opinion
still; isn’t that true?—A. Yes, I held that opinion at the first start until I con-
sulted with Mr. Schreiber and saw the different views taken by the learned
counsel and engineers, and I modified it to the extent, as you know, in my sub-
sequent— :

Q. But still feeling down deep in your consciousness that your first view
was the true view?—A. Well, my first view was the one—when that first inter-
pretation was made, I certainly understood it to be all solid rock.”

Your committee need not at this point diseuss whether Mr. Lumsden’s view of
the specifications was in faet correct or not, as this is a mixed question of law and of
engineering opinion; but there can be no question that Mr. Lumsden’s written inter-
pretation seemed to accord with the views which had been expressed by his distriet
engineers and by the legal opinions referred to, and which have been acted upon by
the engineers in their classification.

The interpretation, drafted as it was by Mr. Lumsden and illustrated by the
accompanying blue print, was submitted to the Commissioners and accepted by them,
and was subsequently submitted to the Assistant Chief Engineer of the Grand Trunk
Pacifiec, Mr. Woods, and his letter approving of the same, found on page 281. This
interpretation was officially communicated by Mr. Lumsden to the distriet engineers
under him, and a conference was arranged by Mr. Lumsden at his office in Ottawa,
at which the district engineers appeared, and Mr. Lumsden then further modified
his interpretation and instructions regarding measurement of this massed material
by adding to his letter the following:—

In short, actual measurement shall be made of all classified material re-

turned, and not by percentages, except in cases where remeasurements are im-

practicable in the judgment of the engineer in charge. (Exhibit 32, page 192.)

The uncontradicted evidence and especially that of Mr. Lumsden himself, shows
that no engineer was appointed by the Commissioners except upon the recommenda-
tion of Mr. Lumsden himself. There has not been, in the whole course of the in-
quiry, a suggestion that the appointment of any engineer was imposed on Mr. Lums-
den, or that the Commissioners ever declined to give effect to any recommendation
of Mr. Lumsden for the dismissal of any engineer. All the engineers in whom Mr.
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Lumsden declared, in his letter of resignation, that he had lost confidence were
appointed by the Board of Railway Commissioners upon his own recommendation in
writing, as will be seen on reference to Exhibits Nos. 31, 32 and 33, pages 191, 192
and 193. >

Mr. Lumsden, as Chief Egnineer, was therefore responsible for the engineers
under his charge, and he had such absolute control over them as the Chief Engineer
in such works always has.

Moreover, Mr. Lumsden, under the terms of the contracts between the Commis-
sioners and the contractors, was clothed with absolute authority in dealing with the
contractors, it being provided that:—

All instructions or certificates given, or decisions made by any one acting
under the authority of the Chief Engineer shall be subject to his approval.
(Page 189.)

In all cases where the contractor or the Commissioners are dissatisfied with
the decision of the engineer or inspector in immediate charge of the work, an
appeal to the Chief Engineer may be made.

And by Clause 15 it was provided:—

That the Engineer shall be the sole judge of the work and material in re-
spect of both quality and quantity and his decision in all questions in dispute
with regard to work or material shall be final.

He was thus constituted the supreme authority upon the whole work. There was
in the contracts (Clause 39) the further provision that:— '

The progress measurements and progress certificates shall not in any respect
be taken as binding upon the Commissioners, or as final measurements, or as
fixing final amounts; they are to be subject to the revision of the engineer in
making up his final certificate, and they shall not in any respect be taken as any
acceptance of the work or release of the contractor from responsibility in respect
thereof, but he shall at the conclusion of the work deliver over the same in good
order, according to the true intent and meaning of this Agreement. ;

The commissioners had further security provided in the drawback of a ten per
cent of the progress estimates under Clause 34, together with a lien upon all the plant,
material and machinery belonging to the contractors.” The amounts payable under
the contracts and even the progress estimates themselves, together with the quantities
and classification, were thus subject to the absolute and final revision and decision
of Mr. Lumsden as Chief Engineer.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Lumsden was thus vested with the full control of his
engineering staff and the full direction of the work as it progressed, it is to be ob-
served that he never made any complaint whatever to the commissioners of any
engineer, nor did he ever give to the commissioners so much as a hint that he had
bfagun to lose confidence in any of the engineers upon the staff. Mr. Lumsden occu-
pied an office in Ottawa with the commissioners and it appears extraordinary that
the first word of complaint against his engineers should come in his letter of resigna-
tion. He himself attributes his loss of confidence in the engineering staff to what he
saw and heard upon the tour of inspection with Mr. Schreiber and Mr. Kelliher who
went with him for the purpose of an arbitration under the provisions of Clause 7 of
the agreement between the commissioners and the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway
t-? which it will be necessary to make some further reference. But Mr. Lumsden in
hls-l?ttel‘ of September 24, 1907 (Ex. 8, p. 145) expressed dissatisfaction with his
position as chief engineer, upon the grounds that the Commission differed from an
ordinary railway corporation inasmuch as its powers were limited by the Act, and
they had not the same freedom of action to meet difficulties as they arose in the con-
struction of the work; that his salary was inadequate, and that the magnitude of the
work subjected him to strain and worry. In that letter Mr. Lumsden says:—
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Personally, T feel that matters are so different under a government commission,
whose powers are limited by the Act, from what they had previously been under a
corporation who could act on their own initiative and take the-responsibility
of making such modifications in contracts as now suggested by me in just such
difficulties as are now being experienced in Distriet ‘F’ that unless some relief
can be given, the strain and worry connected with my present position is more
than I can stand, especially as the salary is not in proportion to the responsi-
bility involved. :

It is difficult for your committee to present in sucecinet form the substance of the
evidence taken with regard to the trip of inspection by Mr. Lumsden and the other arbi-
trators upon which he says he acquired the information which led to his resignation.
He with the chief engineer of the Grand Trunk Pacific and Mr. Schreiber were ap-
pointed to arbitrate certain differences in cuts, which had been specially indicated in
Mr. Woods’ letters. Their whole tour of inspection on District ‘F’ lasted from the
22nd May to the 5th June, 1909; and from the evidence of Mr. Lumsden himself his
inspection appears to have been of the most cursory and superficial character. There
were hundreds of rock cuttings, many of which had taken from six to fifteen months
to make and in which the classification had been made by resident engineers on the
ground who actually saw the material removed from week to week; and Mr. Lumsden,
upon walking through a cut, the slopes of which had naturally undergone consider-
able changes, as explained by a number of the engineers examined pefore the com-
mittee, undertook by mere guess work to condemn the original classification and to
determine what it ought to have been. The method of doing so, according to Mr.
Lumsden, was that he and Mr. Kelliher would average their guesses, or, where they
failed to agree upon this, they asked the opinion of Mr. Schreiber and the notes in
Mr. Lumsden’s diary represented as a general rule what, as he himself states, he was
¢ willing eventually to put down,” (p. 400).

The engineers on the ground were not only not invited to give any explanations
of their work, but were given to understand that no explanations were desired. On
this point Mr. Lumsden’s evidence is as follows (p. 485) :— .

Q. I think you told us already that it was intimated to Mr. Poulin that he
was not wanted to interfere, that the engineers were not allowed to say anything?
—A. There was to be no discussion on the work.

Q. That was the scheme?—A. Yes.

Fragmentary depositions which were taken and which had been fyled by Mr.
Lumsden, were taken away from the work and without the engineers having any
opportunity of referring to their notes or records.

Mr. Lumsden did not take measurements and in very few instances, indeed, did
he cause any diggings to be made into the sides of the slopes; and these according
to the evidence of the engineers were quite inadequate to give any indication of the
character of the material behind the face of the slope. It was established conclu-
sively that the face of the slopes of the cuttings changes very rapidly after their
completion and that it was impossible to form any accurate idea of the nature of the
material from such a cursory examination; in fact Mr. Lumsden had taken this posi-
tion in a previous letter to Mr. Woods, of date May 15, 1908, (p. 292), in which he
says:—

What T mean is this, that if, on examining work, say a cutting practically
finished, I thought the classification appeared to be excessive, T would not be pre-
pared to ignore the classification made by the engineer who had seen the work from
day to day and state what the classification should be, without being able to
verify my own ideas by actual measurements and observations of material found
beyond the slopes of the material taken from such cutting which would necessi-
tate the digging out sections of embankments or waste where the material has
been deposited. This would take considerable time, but would give a good idea
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of any great excess of solid rock or other classified material that might have been
returned in such cutting.

Similar statements are found in several of his letters and throughout his evidence.

The same method was pursued by him on district ‘B.” He went over 150 miles,
the whole tour of inspection being made between June 16 and June 22, 1909. No
measurements were taken and only one small digging was made.

At the conclusion of the trip on District ¢ B” letters of protest against the manner
in which the inspection had been conducted were written to the Commission by dis-
trict engineer Poulin of District ¢ ¥,” (found on p. 483, Ex. No. 73); by District
Engineer Doucet, of District ‘B’ (p. 488 Ex. 74); and by Mr. Heustis, assistant dis-
trict engineer of District ¢ B? (p. 487 Ex. 79). These letters were read clause by clause
to Mr. Lumsden and admitted by him to give a substantially accurate account of
what was done. (See testimony of Mr. Lumsden as to Poulin, p. 485-488; as to
Doucet, p. 491, 492; as to Heustis, p. 516-519).

Mr. Lumsden’s evidence on this point is as follows:—

Q. Do you or do you not think that this trip furnished sufficient data, as
Mr. Poulin puts it, to justify a re-classification of the work?—A. T think from
what I know, if I was doing it again I would get fuller information on the
ground. .

Q. Very much fuller?—A. Well, I could.

Q. If you were doing it again you would take a different procedure; you
would examine the engineers more fully on the ground?—A. That is what I
mean.

Q. And investigate into the reasons for the different classifications. Any-
thing that struck you as requiring explanation, you would ask for an explanation
on the spot? Is that so?%—A. To a certain extent that is so.

Q. In other words if you were doing it again, you would conduet it or see
that it was conducted somewhat more sympathetically with the work; that is to
say, you would not allow the beard to maintain such a remote attitude towards
those in charge of the work and you would get more in touch with them and find
out what they had been working in their minds, and what they had been doing?
—A. I think it would be better if we had done so. I say that.

It is obvious that such information as Mr. Lumsden acquired on these trips was
quite insufficient to justify him in losing confidence in his engineerng staff or even in
subjecting them to eriticism without further investigation.

There were in all four questions upon which Mr. Lumsden says he differed from
tbe classification of his engineers, the principal as before stated, being in the classifica-
t}on of massed material, or assembled rock, as Mr. Lumsden called it in his interpreta-
tion. 'I:he blue print accompanying his interpretation gave no dimensions, nor yet the
proportion of rock or boulders necessary in the mass to constitute assembled rock;
and it is quite apparent that there was reasonable ground for difference of opinion
both as to the clauses of the specifications themselves, as shown by the radical differ-
en?e_between Mr. Lumsden and all the counsel and other engineers who expressed
opinions upon the clauses, and also as to the meaning of Mr. Lumsden’s interpretation.
Anothgr difference of opinion was with respect to what is termed  overbreak’ or the
rock displayed beyond the theoretical slopes in a cut. According to the specifications
this was to be paid for if it was caused unavoidably, but was not to be paid for if caused
negl.lgently by the use of excessive blasts. Mr. Lumsden, in common with all the
engineers, admitted that a certain amount of breaking away behind and beyond the
theoretical "S_IOPG in rock cuttings is quite inevitable, and that it will vary to some ex-
tent according to the character of the material and other circumstances. As Mr.
Ll‘ims.den sta'ted this overbreak is a very small item indeed on District ‘B’ and in
District ‘T if any errors in the return of solid rock have been made owing to undue
allowance for overbreak, that is a matter which can be readily adjusted by engineers,
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and according to the evidence of Mr. Grant, the present Chief Engineer, it is now
under investigation. There is no suggestion anywhere in the evidence that any ex
cessive overbreak had been intentionally returned. ‘

Another item referred to in Mr. Lumsden’s statement was the return of frozen
material as loose rock. Mr. Poulin, the district engineer of District ‘F, was appoin*-
ed after the time within which the contract was to have been completed had expired,
end his instruetions from Mr. Lumsden were to hasten the work of construction as
rapidly as possible. The season of summer work was short, and certain material was
returned as loose rock which had been removed while frozen solid. Mr. Lumsden,
however, several times during the course of his evidence stated that he made no
charge with respect to frozen material, and notably on page 334.

There is also some question about the allowance of indurated material in borrow
pits near Wabigoon as loose rock. This was reported to Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Poulin
at the time of its classification without objection from him, and the evidence appears
to establish that the classification of this material was correctly made in accordance
with engineering practice. In any event the item is small in amount.

Another ground of complaint was that the enginéers had classified massed
material by percentages instead of by actual measurement. In the letter of instruc-
tions of Mr. Lumsden, already referred to, of January 30, he distinctly excepted from
his order that measurements should be made in all cases where measurements was
impracticable. The evidence shows that actual measurements have in all cases been
made of the total quantities of material moved, and also actual measurements of all
ledge rock. It appears that in certain cuts the massed material occurred in very
irregular formations, and it was found by the engineers impossible to measure ac-
curately the quantities of material which should be returned as assembled rock. In
such cases measurement by percentage, as authorized by Mr. Lumsden was resorted
to and the evidence establishes that this had been the practice on other railways, and
is in accordance with the best engineering methods. In fact all the engineers ex-
amined declared upon oath that no other means of classification of such material is
known to engineering science.

These questions are all questions of engineering opinion, and do not involve in
the aggregate a very serious amount; the returns and progress estimates are all sub-
ject to revision, the commissioners being far more than amply protected by the secur-
ity held by them.

As regards the alleged over-classification of assembled rock, Mr. Gordon Grant,
who has had the advantage of making a personal inspection of the road spoke of it
as a tempest in a teapot. (p. 535).

In view of the increase in the cost of the road over the preliminary estimates,
your committee thought it proper to inquire carefully whether this was in any ap-
preciable degree attributable to over-classification. The first estimate attributed to
Mr. Schreiber in 1903 was previous to any surveys whatever having been made, and
was simply a rough estimate of what it might probably cost to build through such a
country. The later estimates of quantities printed on page 5353 of Hansard (Mch.
11, 1910) and reprinted on p. 548 of the Proceedings before this Committee contained
in the first, third and fifth columns was compiled for the purpose of enabling the
commissioners to appreciate the tenders of the contractors, or, as it is commonly
called, to ¢ moneyout’ the tenders, and was in many cases based upon preliminary
lines which were subsequently very materially changed, and which did not include a
number of items entering into the cost of construction. These figures were not com-
municated to the contractors tendering but were intended solely as a guide to the
Commissioners in determining which were the lowest tenders according to the prices
asked for different classes of material in each tender. As he stated above, they were
based to a considerable extent upon preliminary lines, that is, the first projected lines
of surveys. These lines were superseded by the revised location, and these again by
the final location, and as Mr. Lumsden says, even the final location was in many
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places materially changed, which he says would account for a great deal of difference
in the cost. The actual quantities found were in cases totally different from those
estimated. There was no estimate made in these figures for train haul. Another
very important item was that a large amount of side-hill work was encountered, a
notable example being some twenty miles upon the St. Maurice river, where
the whole side of the hill, 150 feet high, required to be removed, increasing the cost
by at least four or five times the amount estimated. At La Tuque it was necessary,
in order to obtain the required grade to make a detour of some six miles. There was
no estimate for carrying rock cuttings one foot below grade. In addition to these
there are several items set forth in the evidence of Mr. Doucet, pages 559 and 560,
and in the comparative statements prepared by Mr. Doucet and Mr. Poulin, filed as
Ex. No. 100, p. 604, and as Exhibit No. 111, p. 679. :

The estimate of $114,000,000 was subsequently compiled by Mr. Lumsden from
the reports of his assistant engineers, and as appears by the evidence was incom-
plete, but according to the evidence of Mr. Grant will not be exceeded in the actual
cost to any great extent. Mr. Grant says, ‘there will be no great difference between
the actual cost and the $114,000,000 estimate’ (p. 540) exclusive of terminals and
other items which were not included in the estimate.

At an early stage of the proceedings Mr. Lumsden indicated that the only dif-
ference between him and the engineers under him was one of professional opinion.

Mr. Lumsden was repeatedly asked whether he had any reason to suspect the
good faith of the engineers acting under him, and he very frankly stated that it was
merely a difference of opinion between them, and that he could not agree with their
classification, but that he did not doubt their integrity and honesty of purpose. The
following extracts from the evidence given by Mr. Lumsden show that he withdrew
all imputations against the engineers either as to their disregard of instructions or
as to any improper motives on their part. We find on page 208 he said:—

Q. I might just ask you the question now that the same difference of opinion
exists on District ©“ F, between you and the district and subordinate engineers
as on District ‘B’ with regard to this cemented material or assembled rock ?—A.
I think so.

Q. And the question on that district is, to all intents and purposes, in iden-
tically the same position as on Section ‘B, isn’t it?—A. I think so, practically
the same.

Q. Practically the same. It is a difference between you and the district
and subordinate engineers as to the interpretation of that clause of the specifica-
tion?—A. Yes, and of my interpretation of it.

Q. And of your interpretation of it—quite so.

By Mpr. Moss:

2 QI twou_ld like to ask Mr. Lumsden if he makes any suggestion or any com-
plaint regarding the professional capacity, integrity or ability of these engineers?
'—A. The professional capacity of some of the resident engineers I know noth-
ing about.

Q. 'You x.nake no charge—— ?%—A. I make no personal charge against any
one of intentional wrong-doing.

Q. And you do not as far as Mr. Poulin is concerned —A. No, T do not as
far as Mr. Poulin is concerned.
Q. You make no charge as to h
the work?—A. No,
Also on page 329 :—

Q. You adopted the course of resigning in a letter couched in terms as would

destroy public confidence in the whole engineering staff%—A. No, I don’t think
S0.

3—2

is capacity or integrity, or his attention to
I make no charge of that kind.
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Q. When you used such terms as that you had lost conﬁdence in all the staff
that is practically what it amounted to?—A. Well, in

Q. Then you modified it by a postscript, or rather a letter the following day,
that this did not apply to the whole staff. Looking at the matter now in a fair-
minded way—I know it is not possible for me to put words in your mouth, or to
lead you in the slightest degree—but looking at it now calmly and dispassionately,
would it not have been fairer for you in view of all that has taken place—these
differences of opinion and your attention being drawn especially to the Hodgins
inquiry—would it not have been fairer to these engineers to have met them and
threshed the thing out and had the thing settled, than to have used such terms as
placed them all under such a charge as parliament found it immediately neces-
sary to investigate?’—A. Well, I didn’t—I am sorry now that I put it in the
words I did that I had lost confidence. I put just the words that came to me at
the time. I am sorry I put in the words ‘having lost canfidence” I felt that
they—I could not agree with the classification as I found it.

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. You now regard the expressmn you used as somewhat unfortunate?—A.
Yes. ‘Having lost confidence in them’ is probably somewhat unfortunate for it
reflects on them, but I did not intend to do it.

Also on page 332:—

Q. These men are the men who have suffered in their professional reputa-
tions?—A. Well, as T have said, in the outset, I withdraw that portion of it, so
far as referring to their honesty and integrity in the matter is concerned.

Also on page 415, questioned as to whether he had not other reasons for resigning,
Mr. Lumsden’s evidence was:—

Q. Did you have any other reasons in your mmd?—A I can’t say now
whether I had or not.

Q. You can’t say as to that, and the reasons which you did finally give were
those reasons in regard to lack of confidence in your engineers, and you regret
that expression as being an unfortunate one?—A. Yes, I do, and if T had to write
it again I would probably put it in other terms.

Also on page 474:—

Q. Now, Mr. Lumsden, supposing that instead of adopting the course which
you have seen fit to adopt, of resigning and making these suggestions against the
engineers, you had adopted the course of remaining with the commission and
endeavouring to reconstitute your staff to your satisfaction, would you, on that
investigation and on that material have felt justified in dlSll’llSSng‘ Mr. Richan
from the service of the commission?—A. I did’'nt consider it in that way at all;
I didn’t—as I seemed to be disagreeing with all of them, I came to the con-
clusion T would resign. |

Q. Though you might be wrong and they might be right?—A. Exactly; 1
chose to resign; at any rate, that is what I did.

Q. Of course, you involved these gentlemen; T don’t want to dwell on it any
longer than is necessary, or to put any more stress on it than is necessary, but
you saw fit to involve these gentlemen and it is necessary they should be cleared
in regard to the matter; it is fair to say you would not have undertaken on such
investigation as you had made to dismiss Mr. Richan from the service of the com-
missioners or to request his dismissal, would you?—A. T don’t suppose I would.

Q. And in the suggestion that you made in putting in your letter of resig-
nation in the terms in which you put it, you did not intend to suggest that he
was incompetent or unfit to continue the work he was doing then?%—A. I merely
said, at least T don’t know what I originally said, but my explanation at the
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commencement of this investigation I said it was simply a matter 9f not agree-
ing with the classification; it wasn't a matter of losing confidence in their hon-
esty nor their integrity.

It is to be regretted that Mr. Lumsden did not go earlier upon the work him§e.1f ax.ld
visit it more frequently. Had he done so, it is probable that any question arising in
regard to classification would have been immediately and satisfactorily adjusted; and
when any difference arose, your committee are of the opinion thatit was Mr. Lumsden’s
duty as Chief Engineer to have immediately taken steps to have had the difference
sett’ed, and if any portion of the staff refused to conform to his instructions, to have
recommended their dismissal to the board of commissioners. The district engineers,
Mr. Doucet and Mr. Poulin, both engineers of large experience and of high s.tandi.ng
in their profession, stated that they were thoroughly familiar with the clasmﬁcatx_on
returned from their respective districts, and expressed their complete satisfaction w1t‘h
the engineers under them, and assumed complete responsibility for the work in their
districts. As a consequence, it appeared to the committee that no further informa-
tion that would be of assistance to them would be obtained by calling any engineers
in addition to those whose evidence was taken.

Your committee beg to submit herewith to the House all the evidence taken
before us to date for their information, and to report that in our opinion Mr. Lums-
den’s charge of general disregard of his instructions has not been sustained, and no
evidence has been adduced which, in our opinion, would justify him in stating that
he had lost confidence in the portion of the engineering staff referred to by him.

The committee beg to submit to the House such further or other reports as may
be necessary.

All which is rspectfully submitted.
VICTOR GEOFFRION,

Chairman.

SIXTH REPORT.

Tuespay, May 3, 1910.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations
made by Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the Engineering Staff of the

National Transcontinental Railway beg leave to present the following as their Sixth
Report :— :

As regards the payment of fees and expenses of Counsel appearing before your
Committee during the course of the inquiry held by them, your Committee recom-
mend that, in addition to the fees to be paid to Mr. F. H. Chrysler, K.C., counsel for
the Committee under the authority granted by the House on the 23rd February last,
proper and reasonable fees and expenses should by paid to Mr. R. C. Smith, K.C,,
counsel for the Transcontinental Railway Commissioners, and to Mr. J. A. Moss,
K.C., counsel for the Engincers affected by Mr. Lumsden’s charges, and for this
purpose they also recommend that the Clerk of the House and the Law Clerk be
authorized to tax the fees” and expenses of the said three counsel and to pay the
same when so taxed out of any moneys voted by Parliament for expenses of Com-
mittees.

All which is respectfully submitted.

VIOTOR GEOFFRION,

Chairman.

<o
,.

o

v
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SEVENTH REPORT.

WEDNESDAY, May 4, 1910.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations
made by Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the Engineering Staff of the
National Transcontinental Railway, beg leave to present the following as their
Seventh Report:—

Mr. Lumsden having applied for compensation for the loss of the time he was
required to remain in attendance upon the Committee, during which he was unable
to accept any professional engagements, your Committee recommend that he be paid
such compensation for a period of twenty-three days, on the basis of the salary which
he received as Chief Engineer of the Transcontinental Railway, and that the Clerk
of the House be authorized to pay the same out of any moneys voted by Parliament
for expenses of Committees.

All which is resnectfully submitted.

VICTOR GEOFFRION,
Chairman.



9-10 EDWARD VI APPENDIX No. 3 . A. 1910

LUMSDEN INQUIRY. s

Facrum Preparep BY F. H. CHrYsLER, K.C.

The Order of the House for the appointment of a special con}mittee,. dated 27th
January, 1910, recites the letter of Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden, late chief engineer of the

National Transcontinental Railway, dated 25th June, 1909, in which he uses the
following language:—

In view of the general disregard of my instructions, and having lost confi-

dence in the engineering staff, I have concluded to resign my position as Chief
Engineer,

And in a second letter, dated 26th June, 1909, addressed to the commissioners, Mr.
Lumsden wrote as follows:—

Referring to my letter of yesterday wherein I stated that I have lost confi-
dence in the engineering staff, I beg to state that this does not apply to the whole
staff, but applies only to a portion of the staff, who are responsible for the mea-
surement, classification, supervision and inspection of considerable portions in
District ‘B’ and east of Rennie Crossing in Distriet ¢ F,’ lately gone over by me.

The resolution further recites:—

While this House deems it not desirable to take any action which might pre-
judice the position of either of the parties to the arbitration proceedings now in
progress between the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company and the said Com-
missioners, yet the said recited allegations of said Hugh D. Lumsden, stated by
him as the reasons for his resignation of the said position of Chief Engineer, are,
in the opinion of this House, of such great public interest and involve such grave
charges against a portion of the engineering staff of the Transcontnental rail-

way as to make it desirable that the same should be investigated by a committee
of this House.

Mr. Lumsden, when examined before the committee, at page 71 of the proceedings,

read a statement referring to the two letters which have been received in the Order of
the House:—

My recent trips over portions of Districts ‘B® and ‘F’ in conection with
the arbitration, had led me to the conclusion that neither the general specifica-
tions, nor my instruetions regarding classification, had been adhered to, but on
the contrary, large amounts of material had been returned as solid rock which
should only have been classified as loose rock or common excavation, and that
material had been returned as loose rock which was or could have
been handled by ploughing and scraping, and should have been returned
as common excavation. I added that, on several residencies, there seemed
to have been no attempt by the engineers to carry out my instructions
and measure rock returned, either by showing the same on cross-sections, or by
measurements of individual pieces, but that they appeared to have simply guessed
at the amount by taking percentages of the total cutting. Further, in some cases
where cross-sections were prepared showing ledge rock, same proved to be erro-
neous, resulting in a very much larger amount of the solid rock being returned
than actually existed. Also, what is known as overbreak had been returned in

21
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many places where it was caused by excessive use of explosives, and where the
material was wasted this ought not to have been dome. Under these circum-
stances, I declined to certify any further estimates in Districts ‘B’ and ¢
and resigned my position as Chief Engineer, stating that, in view of the general
disregard of my instructions, I had lost confidence in that portion of the engineer-
ing staff who were responsible for the measurement, classification, superviston,
and inspection of considerable portions in District ‘B’ and east of Rennie
Crossing in Distriet ¢ F,” lately gone over by me.

I based the statements contained in my resignation both on the facts admitted
by the engineers on the ground, in May and June, 1909, in their sworn statements
made in my presence, and also upon my personal examination on the ground. On my
going over the work, in both Distriets ‘B’ and ‘F,” T found many cuttings and
borrow pits where the classification made by the engineers was such that, from
my professional experience of nearly thirty years, T could not agree with it. This
was especially so in cuttings where ledge rock and other materials were shown on
cross-section sheets, but where, on the stations being pointed out by the engineers
on the ground, no such ledge rock was found to correspond with such cross-
sections; or where, in order that a reasonably accurate measurement of such

" rock should be made, it was evident that more numerous cross-sections should
have been taken. In various places where assembled rock was shown on the
cross-sections, an examination of the material on the adjoining slopes showed no
assembled rock such as indicated in my interpretation of clause 34 of the general
specifications, dated January, 1908. From my notes, taken on the ground at the
time, T have compiled some examples or illustrations of the objectionable classifica-
tion.

In regard to my loss of confidence in a certain portion of the engineering
staff, T may say that this was due to their failure to carry out, in accordance
with my views, the terms of the general specifications, and of my instructions
and interpretations of clauses 34, 85 and 36 of the specifications. The engineers
on the ground, who saw the work frequently while in progress, ought necessarily
to be best qualified to make the classification, provided they have the necessary
experience and are honest, and, though T may doubt whether some of them had
the necessary experience (as exemplified by the manner in which some cross-sec-
tions were taken), I do not challenge the honesty of their intentions. However,
being quite unable to agree with their classification in very many places, T pre—
ferred to resign my position and salary.

Mr. Lumsden has been examined by myself, as counsel appointed by the commit-
tee; by Mr. R. C. Smith, K.C., representing the commissioners of the Transconti-
nental railway, and Mr. J. H. Moss, K.C., representing the engincers. It is difficult
to compress in any short space the result of the evidence. This is more difficult be-
cause it is not easy to reduce to any simple propositions either the statements con-
tained in the letters or in the written statement of Mr. Lumsden on page 71 of the
proceedings.

Mr. Lumsden says that he does not challenge the honesty of intention of the
staff, although he doubts whether some of them have the necessary experience; so
that, not only in the original statement, but repeatedly in his evidence, Mr. Lums-
den has disclaimed any charge of impropriety or bad faith on the part of the staff.
The charge that some of the engineers lacked experience is probably intended to
apply more particularly to some of the resident engineers, and whatever foundation
there may be for this charge, it does not seem to be of much importance considering
the machinery provided for the working out of the supervision of the construction
of the railway, both by the staff of the National Transcontinental Railway Com-
mission and by the engineers appointed on the part of the Grand Trunk Pacific Rail-
way Company.
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In order to see the conditions which surround the work of the engineers, it is
desirable to refer to certain sections of the contract and of the statute. In the gen-
eral form of contract by the Railway Board, which was adopted and used uniformly
in all the contracts for the work, with the exception of a slight change (indicated in
the evidence) in the insertion of clause 36a of the specification, the word ‘engineer’
is defined in section 2 of the contract as including the ¢ Chief Engineer’ and the en-
gineers below him, and among other provisions contains the following sentence:—

All instructions and directions or certificates given, or decisions made, by
any one acting under the authority of the Chief Engineer shall be subject to his
approval and may be cancelled, altered, modified and changed as he may see fit.

And also this sentence:—

Tn all cases where the contractor or the commissioners are dissatisfied with
the decision of the engineer or inspector in immediate charge of the work, an
appeal to the Chief Engineer may be made.

This definition is the guide to a system which is apparent through all the clauses
of the contract, under which the engineering staff was made parts of one whole, as
was explained in the evidence, the primary rank are the resident engineers, who re-
main on the work during the time it is in progress and have under their charge a
di.vision of about ten miles each. Over them are division engineers, or engineers of
divisions, who are responsible for the work and are in touch with and advise with
the resident engineers and have under them about forty or fifty miles of railway,
called divisions.

The whole line of railway is divided into six districts, lettered from A to F; and
of these, two are particularly referred to in the evidence. That portion of District
B’ lying north-west of the city of Quebec and extending for about 180 miles, and
District ¢ F’ beginning at the city of Winnipeg and extending easterly to a point a
few miles east of Superior Junction. Each of these districts had a district engineer
and assistant district engineer to supervise the work of the division engineers.

In the preparation of estimates, which involve the measurement of the work and
its classification, the foundation of the return was the work of the resident engineer
upon the ground, subject to revision by the division engineer, further revision by the
district engineer, and finally subject to approval by the Chief Engineer of the railway
before payment was made thereon. In no case to which the evidence has been direc-
ted has a final estimate been given to a contractor for the work, and the revision of the
progress estimates is subject to the provisions of section 34 of the contract providing
for cash payments equal to about ninety per cent being made to the contractor monthly,
the remaining ten per cent to be retained until the final completion of the whole work
to the satisfaction of the Chief Engineer for the time being, having control over the
work ; also to section 89, which provides that:—

The progress measurements and progress certificates shall not in any respect
be taken as binding upon the Commissioners, or as final measurements, or as
ﬁpal amounts; they are to be subject to the revision of the engineer in making up
his final certificate, and they shall not in any respect be taken as an acceptance of
the v.vork or release of the contractor from responsibility in respect thereof.
Section 15 of the contract should also be noted. It provides that:—

The engineer shall be the solé judge of work and material in respect of both

quantity and quality, and his decision on all questions in dispute with regard to
work or material shall be final

It is apparent' that mere inexperience on the part of the resident engineers would
no.t result in the improper payments of moneys to contractors, under the clauses of
this contract, unless their work was adopted and approved by the engineers above

qu?m, including the Chief Engineer, responsible for the proper enforcement of the pro-
visions of the contract.



24 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

9-10 EDWARD VII,, A. 1910

Another security, however, was provided for ensuring the due performance of the
contract, in the arrangement referred to in the evidence, by which the construction of
the railway is made subject to the supervision of the Chief Engineer of the Grand
Trunk Pacific Railway Company. This is provided for in the contract between the
government and the company, contained in the schedule to the statute of 1908, chap.71.

Section T of the contract is as follows:—

In order to ensure, for the protection of the company as lessees of the eastern
division of the said railway, the economical construction thereof in such a manner
that it can be operated to the best advantage, it is hereby agreed that the specifica-
tiens for the construction of the eastern division shall be submitted to, and ap-
proved of by, the company before the commencement of the work. And that
the said work shall be done according to the said specifications and shall
be subject to the joint supervision, inspection and acceptance of the Chief
Engineer appointed by the government and the Chief Engineer of the com-
pany; and, in the event of differences as to the specifications, or in case the said
engineers shall differ as to the work, the questions in dispute shall be determined
by the said engineers and a third arbitrator, to be chosen in the manner pro-
vided in paragraph four of this agreement.

Before passing from this section it will be observed that in the first place it
provided for the submission to and approval by the company of the specifications for
the construction of the eastern division before the commencement of the work;
according to the evidence this was carried out, and the specifications—some clauses
of which are under consideration in this inquiry—were submitted to and approved
by the Grand Trunk Pacific Company before the commencement of the work.

The second part of the section—as to joint supervision and inspection—has been
carried out, according to the evidence, by the appointment of an engineer on behalf
of the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company to supervise the work of construction
of the eastern division with district engineers, on each of the districts in question
here.

Tt appears from the evidence that there were district engineers representing the
Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company each having special charge of Distriet ‘B’
and of District ‘F, who were upon the work from the beginning of construction,
and who have had submitted to them the plans, measurements and returns for all
work during the progress of construction up to the present time.

The evidence of Mr. Gordon Grant, now the Chief Engineer of the Transcontin-
ental Railway Commission, shows the present position of the arrangement between
the Commission and the company with regard to the payment of the contractors.
So far as the two districts are concerned, he states that the points in dispute are
comparatively unimportant in number or amount; that a great many of them have
been satisfactorily agreed upon by the engineers representing the two parties; and
that those that have not yet been settled are in course of adjustment.

Should an adjustment by the engineers not be arrived at, the sections of the
contract which relate to the settlement of any dispute provides for the appointment
of a third arbitrator by the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of Canada. !

Before referring to the evidence, it will be convenient to refer to the clauses of
the specifications which have been the subject of the discussion in Mr. Lumsden’s
evidence and that of the other witnesses. The evidence turned upon the clauses as
to classification, which are as follows:—

CLASSIFICATION.,

33. Grading will be commonly classified under the following heads: ¢ Solid
Rock Excavation;’ ‘Loose Rock’ and ¢ Common Excavation.’
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SOLID ROCK EXCAVATION,

34, Solid rock excavation will include all rock found in ledges or masses
of more than one cubic yard, which, in the judgment of the engineer, may be
best removed by blasting.

LOOSE ROCK.

35. All large stones and boulders measuring more than one cubic foot and
less than one cubic yard, and all loose rock whether in situ or otherwise, that
may be removed by hand, pick or bar, all cemented gravel, indurated clay and
other materials, that cannot, in the judgment of the engineer, be ploughed with
a ten-inch grading plough, behind a team of six good horses, properly handled,
and without the necessity of blasting, although blasting may be occasionally
resorted to, shall be classified ar ‘loose rock.

COMMON EXCAVATION.

36. Common excavation will include all earth, free gravel or other material
of any character whatever not classified as solid or loose rock.

36a. No classification other than that of common excavation will be allowed
on material from borrow pits, except by order in writing of the engineer.

SLIDES.

37. Material in slips, slides and subsidences extending beyond slopes in cut-
tings will not be paid for unless, in the opinion of the engineer, such occur-
rences were beyond the control of the contractor and not preventable by use
of due care and diligence. -

CLASSIFICATION OF SLIDES.

38. The classification of material from slides shall be made by the engineer,

and will be in accordance with its condition at the time of the slide, regardless
of prior conditions.

The nature and history of the difference of opinion between the Chief Engineer
and his subordinate engineers is traced in the documents which have been filed as
exhibits and in the evidence of the witnesses. The difficulty arose in some degree,
it is evident, from the fact that Mr. Lumsden did not feel that he had the same
freedom of action as in acting for a private corporation.

In a letter dated 24th September, 1907 (Exhibit 8, page 145 of the proceedings)
Mr. Lumsden says:—

. T"(\.r@unnlly, I feel that matters are so different under a government com-
mission, whose powers are limited by the Act, from what they had previously
been under a corporation, who could act on their own initiative and take the re-
gpopﬂibilily of making such modifications in contracts as now suggested by me
in just such difficulties as are now being experienced in District ‘¥’ that unless
some relief can be given, the strain and worry connected with my present posi-

tion is more than T can stand, especially as the salary is not in proportion to the
responsibility involved.

The dxfﬁ(}ultles referred to at the time were those arising from the high price of
labour, the difficulty of. securing men and of securing the rapid progress of the work
ls:v the contractors owing to the fact that it was not profitable at the prices men-
tioned in the contract. (See the remainder of the letter, Exhibit 8.)

Mr Lumsden states in his evidence that later on—a few months after—that
position was changed; that labour was more abundant, and the wages were not so
hlgh.. .But Exhibit 8 should be carefully examined, as it contains a statement of the
conditions and difficulties which prevailed in the-month of September, 1907. The
same letter contained the recommendation of the appointment of Mr. S. R. Poulin
as district engineer for District ‘F’ in succession to Mr. Hodgins, who had resigned.

-
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On the 7th October, 1907, Mr. Lumsden received a letter from Mr. Woods, as-
sistant chief engineer of the Grand Trunk Pacific (Exhibit 10) stating that District
Engineer Armstrong, a Grand Trunk Pacific engineer, was furnished recently with
a statement of classifications for the heavier work on Section ‘B, and that Mr.
Waods and Mr. Armstrong visited the work, passing over portions of the work west
of the Batiscan river, and from mile 115 to mile 132. It contains some statements
which show quite clearly that the engineers of the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway
Company were at that time aware that clause 34 of the specification was construed
as meaning rock in masses, or material in masses, other than ledge rock. Mr. Lums-
den replied (Exhibit 11, page 149) stating that the matter should be looked into and
a full investigation made. This was followed in the same month by a conference at
La Tuque, which took place about the 25th October, and a report of which was made
by Mr. Lumsden to the commissioners on the 80th October, 1907 (Exhibit 18.)

Evidence has been given by several witnesses who were present at that confer-
ence, including, beside Mr. Lumsden, Mr. Doucet, Mr. Grant and Mr. Huestis; and
all agree that at the meeting in question Mr. Woods withdrew the statement which
had been made in Exhibit 10, that the over-classifications which he alleged were made,
not through error of judgment, nor upon the decision of the resident or division
engineers, who were fully acquainted with the character of the work, but by arbitrary
orders from their superior.

According to Mr. Doucet, the discussion referred to in Exhibit No. 13 turned
upon the meaning of clause 34, which the engineers other than Mr. Lumsden main-
tained included masses of material which in the judgment of the engineer may be
best removed by blasting, and consisting largely of rock cemented together.

The matter was submitted to the government in accordance with the request of
Mr. Lumsden contained in his letter (Exhibit 14, page 153) and is referred to in the
Jetter of the secretary of the board (Exhibit No. 15, page 154), in which the secretary
says:—

As the correspondence will show, the complaint of the Grand Trunk Pacific
engineer has resulted in revealing for the first time since construction started
the difference between the Chief Engineer of the commissioners and his staff with
respect to the interpretation of clauses of the contract relating to classification.

Also:—

Although the complaint of the Grand Trunk Pacific engineer specifically
relates to certain cuttings on Macdonnell & O’Brien’s contract, the whole work
will be affected by the interpretation of paragraph 34 of the specifications.
Accordingly both our contractors in District ‘B’ have been officially notified of
the interpretation placed by our Chief Engineer on paragraph 34 of the specifica-
tions, and their replies contesting the interpretation of our Chief Engineer are
included in the correspondence which accompany this letter.

The correspondence was referred back to the Minister of Railways to the Railway
Board with the statement that he considered that full power was vested in the com-
missioners and their Chef Engineer to carry on the work in such a way as to them
seemed best. (Exhibit No. 16, page 155.)

Mr. Lumsden then submitted an interpretation of clauses 84 and 36 of the specifi-
cations (Exhibit No. 17, page 156), which he stated was made by him after consult-
ing with Mr. Collingwood Schreiber, consulting engineer to the government.

On the 20th December the correspondence was submitted to the Department of
Justice (Exhibit No. 18, page 157), and returned by the Deputy Minister of Justice,
Mr. Newcombe, on the 6th January (Exhibit No. 19), in which he stated his approval
of the interpretation placed by the Chief Engineer upon the contract, with one excep-
tion. He says:—

T see no reason to differ from the classification stated by the Chief Engineer
in his letter to the commissioners of the 16th ultimo, except as to the statement
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that ‘rock assembled (the individual pieces of such assembled rock exceeding
one cubic foot in size)....such as in the judgment of the engineer may be best
removed by blasting, is to be classified as solid rock excavation under clause 34.
I do not understand upon what principle the Chief Engineer limits the size to
pieces exceeding one cubic foot. The specification speaks of rock found in ledges
or masses of more than one cubic yard, which in the judgment of the engineer
may be best removed by blasting. If ‘ rock assembled’ may be regarded as a mass
of rock, and if it may be best removed by blasting, I do not see why under the
specification it is material whether the individual pieces exceed or are less than
one cubic foot in size, and if ‘rock assembled’ is mot regarded as a mass! the
minimum limit of size which can be eclassified as solid rock exceeds one cubic
yard.

Immediately afterwards, on the 9th January, Mr. Lumsden communicated to the com-

missioners of the Transcontinental railway the letter received from the Deputy Minis-

ter of Justice, and he says:—

After fully considering his remarks in regard to the words after ‘rock as-
sembled’ (the individual pieces of such assembled rock exceeding one cubic foot
in size), I have concluded in deference to his remarks these bracketed words
might be omitted, as also the words ‘not covered under clause 84’ in items 1 and
2 under the heading ‘loose rock.’

My interpretation of these clauses will now be as follows:—

Clause 34—Solid Rock Excavation.

Solid rock excavation will include all rock found in ledges or masses of more
than one cubic yard, which in the judgment of the engineers may be best removed
by blasting.

I am of the opinion that rock found in ledges or masses as specified must
(firstly) be rock, and (secondly) it must be in ledges, conglomerate form (known
as plum pudding stone), boulders or ledge rock displaced (in pieces each exceed-
ing one cubic yard in size), rock assembled also shale rock, such as in the judg-
ment of the engineer may be best removed by blasting.

I attach a diagram in explanation of the above, which, in my opinion, is all

that is included under clause 34—solid rock.

Clause 35—Loose Rock.

All large stone and boulders measuring more than one cubic foot and less
than one cubic yard and all loose rock, whether in situ or otherwise, that may be
removed by hand pick or bar, all cemented gravel, indurated clay or other materials
that cannot in the judgment of the engineer be ploughed with a 10-inch grading
plough behind a team of six good horses properly handled, and without the neces-
sity of blasting, although, blasting may be occasionally resorted to, shall be clas-
sified as loose rock.

Under this heading I would include:—

(1) Al lar'ge stones and boulders more than one cubic foot and less than one
cubic yard.

< (2) All loose rock in situ or otherwise that may be removed by hand-pick or
ar. -

.(3) All cemented gravel, indurated clay and other materials that cannot, in
the Judgmel.lt; of the engineer, be ploughed with a ten-inch grading plough, behind
a team of six good horses properly handled and without the necessity of blasting,
although blasting may be occasionally resorted to.

Clause 36—Common E:ccavqtion.

Common excavation will include all earth, free gravel or other material of
any character whatever, not classified as solid or loose rock.
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This interpretation was made by me after consulting with Mr. Collingwood
Schreiber, consulting engineer to the government.

The above, together with the diagram (Exhibit 20a), page 160 of the evidence
form what is referred to afterwards throughout the evidence as Mr., Lums-
den’s interpretation. The blue print consists of four diagrams, No. 1 showing a piece
of rock in ledges; No. 2, rock in boulders; No. 3, conglomerate rock; No. 4, detached
ledge rock. All these, Mr. Lumsden says in his note at the foot of the blue print, are
mere matters of measurement. No. 5 is a diagram showing rock in masses of over
one cubic yard (assembled rock) which in the judgment of the engineer can be best
removed by blasting. There is nothing upon the print to indicate the scale upon which
the pieces of rock are drawn, nor how much of the total space the rock is to occupy.
This class, along with that in No. 6, which is shale rock, have by way of explanation,
a note in the following terms:—

Nos. 5 and 6—to form a judgment as to whether or not it is best removed by
blasting, the Chief Engineer must view the work in progress or leave it to be de-
cided by the engineer in charge, whose duty it is to frequently visit the work dur-
ing its operation and be governed thereby and act accordingly.

The interpretation was approved of by the Commission and was sent by Mr.
Lumsden to the distriet engineers. Exhibit No. 21 is Mr. Lumsden’s letter to Mr.
Doucet submitting the interpretation, and contains an inquiry as to whether the
classification in District ‘B’ conforms to such interpretation; directs Mr. Doucet
to take steps to have the division and resident engineers, who are personally
acquainted with the work, take up the matter and have an estimate prepared, show-
ing the difference such classification would make with that which has heretofore
been used by you; directs measurements to be made showing the classification of
cross-sections, where regular or other classification of material is made in large
quantities or measurements made by an assistant, of rock or loose rock in boulders;
and concludes:—

Actual measurements shall be made of all classified material returned, and
not by percentages, except in cases where measurements are impracticable in
the judgment of the engineer in charge.

A similar letter was written to Mr. Poulin, and received by him.

Exhibit 22 should be read along with IExhibit 21, although it does not appear
to «qualify it in any material respect.

At page 162 Mr. Lumsden says that he did not regard the interpretation as con-
stituting a change in the specification; that he did not recollect any written instruc-
tions prior to January 9; but that there was verbal conversation on the visit to La
Tuque in October, 1907, and that any verbal conversation with the district engineer
of Distriet ‘¥’ must have taken place with Major Hodgins, because he had not
visited the work after Mr. Poulin took charge of it in September, 1907, down to
January, 1908.

There does not appear to have been any foundation disclosed in evidence for
Mr. Lumsden’s complaint with regard to the engineers having disregarded his
instructions prior to January, 1908, because the instructions issued in January, 1908,
appear to be the first distinet instructions upon the subject. Mr. Lumsden says that
in his view they did not constitute any change in the meaning of the specification.
Mr. Doucet and Mr. Poulin, the district engineers, say that in their view the inter-
pretation did not affect any change in the practice which had prevailed in regard
to classification and measurement upon their respective districts. And there seems

- no reason to conclude, from any part of the evidence, that so much of Mr. Lumsden’s
charge of complaint against the engineers—that they had failed to carry out his
instructions—(if by that charge it was intended to imply that the engineers were
guilty of wilful disregard of instructions) has been proved.
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Mr. Lumsden, however, does not in his evidence put it upon that ground, but
rather upon the ground that the staff understood the specification and his interpreta-
tion differently from the manner in which he understood it himself, and that the
substance of the complaint is contained in the latter part of the statement, in which
he says that his loss of confidence was due to ¢the failure of the engineers to carry
out, in accordance with my views, the terms of the general specification, and of my
instruct’ons and interpretations.” The statement is quite consistent with the con-
clusion that the engineers were honestly and faithfully endeavouring to carry out,
even though mistakenly, their own views and understanding of the specifications
and interpretations. This, when examined in the light of the whole of the evidence
which has been given, seems to be the whole ground of controversy.

JTven after the interpretation of January, 1908, Mr. Lumsden seems to have
understood the specification and interpretation in one sense while the district en-
gineers and their staff under them understood them in another sense. What the dif-
ference was requires careful reading of the whole evidence; but the difference is per-
haps more clearly brought out in the evidence of Mr. Doucet, who says that early
in the discussion he raised the question with the Chief Engineer as to the meaning
of the interpretation relating to ‘assembled rock,” whether under it the Chief Engineer
intended that the ¢assembled rock,” or rock in masses, should be allowed only where
the entire mass was rock. Obviously that interpretation could not be tenable, be-
cause the interstices between the rock would have to be filled with something. The
diagram evidently referred to shattered or broken rock lying in masses, and, accord-
ing to the definition in clause 34, cemented together and requiring to be blasted.
But even if all those conditions were satisfied, there was still the question whether
solid rock could or should be returned where the proportion of the mass was largely
but not wholly rock; and when the solid rock content was not broken or shattered
rock, but round boulders with clay, sand, gravel or small boulders filling the inter-
stices. See Mr. Lumsden’s evidence beginning at page 422.

At page 425 Mr. Lumsden says his idea was that assembled rock should mean a
mass of boulders in contact with each other.

At page 426 Mr. Lumsden says the amount of solid rock in material consisting
of boulders of uniform size touching one another throughout the mass would be 65
or 70 per cent of the whole cubic contents. '

Mr. Gordon Grant, at page 532, says:—

I would be willing to allow a mass that is sufficiently hard to justify con-
tinuous blasting to remove it if the proportion of rock in it was anywhere from
fifty to a hundred per cent. I would be more guided by the difficulties of remov-
ing it than by quibbling on the percentage of rock provided it was above fifty.

Mr. Doucet had some correspondence with Mr. Lumsden discussing the matter
of classification. (See proceedings, page 562; exhibits 21, 86, 87 and 88.)

At page 565 he says that he agrees with Mr. Grant that the test of continuous
blasting was absolutely necessary in order to classify material as solid rock under
the specification, and that he did not sanction the classifying, as solid rock, material
which could have been removed by oceasional blasting or without blasting at all.

Mr. Doucet’s evinedce from page 564 gives his views with regard to the meaning
of the specification and the different discussions of the matter with Mr. Lumsden,
and at page 571 he says that in his view the material consisting of boulders cemented
together and which would require continuous blasting to remove, should be classified
as solid rock if the proportion of the whole mass contained fifty per cent rock, and
that where the massed material contains less than fifty per cent of boulders it should
be classified as loose rock under the head of  cemented material” See the bottom of
page 571.

At page 573 Mr. Doucet says that he had an understanding with Mr. Lumsden
as to the proportion of boulders in the mass, which was agreed upon in June, 1908,
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and accepted also by Mr. Woods, the assistant chief engineer of the Grand Trunk
Pacific. :

Mr. Doucet says that he discussed the matter with Mr. Lumsden, and that Mr.
Lumsden assented to Mr. Doucet’s view—that a fair working rule would be to classify
as solid rock material which contained at least 50 per cent of solid rock in mass.

Mr. Lumsden was asked whether he remembered having a discussion with Mr.
Doucet upon the subject, and said he did not remember (see page 436); but it is
apparent that some percentage of other material than rock must, in any case, form
part of such a mass.

The controversy as to solid rock is almost the only one arising out of the con-
struction of the work upon District ‘B.” On this distriet, according to the evidence,
large quantities of boulder rock are found in deposits which, according to the evi-
dence, were cemented together and required continuous blasting to remove. The
resident engineer upon Residency No. 28, Distriet B (Mr. Cressman), gave evidence
as to the character of the rock, which is of spacial value because it is given by the
engineer actually in charge and resident on the work while the work was in progress,
and upon whose residency occur the larger number of localities referred to by Mr.
Lumsden in his illustrations of Distriet ‘ B,” submitted to the committee in Exhibit
No. 2, page 79 of the proceedings.

With regard to District ‘F, the questions are different. The question of the
allowance of solid rock where boulders occur in masses of cemented material, is,
according to the evidence, not of much importance, although there were some cuttings
containing assembled material found in the eastern end of the district.

Fouar questions, however, are the subject of criticism by Mr. Lumsden and are
discussed in the evidence.

1. The first of these is what is termed overbreak, or the allowance for material
in rock cuttings outside of slope lines, and the question whether it should or should
not be allowed depends upon the construction of clauses 84 and 37 of the specifica-
tions. Without repeating these clauses, which have been already quoted, the evi-
dence of the engineers seems to be in agreement, that the material behind the slope
line is to be allowed and paid for unless removed by the excessive use of explosives.
The evidence agrees that a certain amount of breaking away behind the slope line in
rock cuttings is inevitable, and usually occurs on one side where the lines of cleavage
of the rock make it necessary, and usually on the opposite side of the same rock eut-
ting the slope can be, as a rule, adhered to without much removal of material outside
the line. There are cases, however, where large masses of rock are necessarily shat-
tered and brought down by the effect of the blasting in the cutting below, and where
the engineer will, in the interest of the work, require the contractor to bring down
loose or shattered rock, which is liable later on to fall in the cutting and cause dis-
aster. There is no difference among the witnesses as to the interpretation of the
specification; it is simply a question of applying the judgment of the engineer to
the conditions which prevail at each locality, and apart from the removal of the rock
in the cutting, the application of the rule which prohibits wasting of the rock if it
should be used in the construction of embankments. Any errors which may have
been made in the classification of solid rock owing to the undue allowance of overbreak
is a matter that can be readily adjusted by engineers examining the work, and aeccord-
ing to the evidence of Mr. Grant such examination has in a great many cases already
been made.

2. Mr. Lumsden does not in his letters or explanations refer to the subject of the
measurement of frozen material as loose rock, but some evidence has been given with
regard to it. The conditions which give rise to it are variously stated. Mr. Lums-
den said that he had himself given express instructions that frozen earth or material
which would be classified as common excavation, requiring to be removed for the pur-
pose of opening cuttings, should be classified and paid for as loose rock. Mr. Poulin
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referred to a circular letter of instruction issued by his predecessor, Major Hodgins,
directing the engineers to allow, under the circumstances mentioned in the circular,
for frozen material as loose rock, in order to forward the progress of the work;-and
Mr. Poulin says that being himself instructed by the Chief Eng‘;inee.r to press forward
the work in the autumn of 1907, when he went there, he authorized in several cases the
allowance of frozen material as loose rock in the interests of the work, .and _where ‘lt b
deemed necessary for that purpose. It is pointed out that the season in distriet ‘F’ 1s
very short, that the ground is frozen for many months of the year, and that where
rock and earth alternate, it would not be economy to delay the progress of the work of
excavation because of the increased cost of removing frozen earth where necessary to
enable the contractor to get at and remove rock, even if the frozen eart}§ is paid for
at loose rock prices. Whatever view may be entertained as to the propriety of these
payments there is no controversy between Mr. Lumsden and the engineers as to alIoTW-
ance of frozen material, and he has not himself in any case complained of it. Nor
does it, so far as T am aware, form a subject of any complaint on the part of Mr.
Woods, representing the Grand Trunk Pacific.

8. The allowance for frozen muskeg in some instances, objected to by Mr. Lums-
den, is somewhat similar, but rests upon a different ground. It is pointed out by Mr.
Poulin and Mr. Richan that in two or three cases the material consisting of musk?g
was so wet during the summer months that the men could not stand in it and work it,
and that the only way of getting over the ground was to excavate it in winter when it
was frozen; and that being done as winter work, it was properly the subject of allow-
ance as loose rock under the definition contained in clause 35.

The specification does not contain any special provision with regard to frozen
material except that contained in clause 16, which provides that the contractor shall
at his own cost remove snow and ice from any portion of the work, whenever deemed
necessary by the engineer. If frozen muskeg is not loose rock under clause 35 it would
fall within the clause which provides for a price being fixed for undeseribed material.

4. The allowance of loose rock price for indurated material in borrow pits near
Wabigoon and upon some cuttings near the same locality, is given a good deal of
space in the evidence by Mr. Lumsden and by Mr. Poulin. It was reported to Mr.
Lumsden by Mr. Poulin at the time, and his reasons for the conclusion at which he
arrived were given. In this case the contractor was allowed, for the material removed,
one-half the total quantity at loose rock price, and one-half as common excavation.

Whether Mr. Lumsden or Mr. Poulin is right in this matter, the difference is a
comparatively small one, and it is really not the one which Mr. Lumsden refers to in
his statement as the reason for his having lost confidence in his engineering staff.

The real question was the question of the allowance of rock in masses, and it is
apparent from the evidence as a whole that even when Mr. Lumsden gave his evidence
he was not prepared unreservedly to give effect to his own interpretation with regard
to the meaning of what le called assembled rock, but that his view was that the as-
sembled rock, or rock in masses, should consist almost wholly of fragments of rock,
and that boulders cemented together, no matter how closely they might be found ?n
the material, would not constitute masses of rock, in his view. As he expresses it,
in more than one place in his evidence, he had in his mind the practice under pre-
vious contracts and specifications in which rock meant rock and nothing else; but it
is apparent from the interpretation of Mr. Lumsden and his evidence that the term
‘solid rock’ as used in clause 34 of the specifications, is a mere collective term and
means the various things which are included within the definition, just as ¢loose rock’
under clause 35 includes many things which are not, in the strict sense of the term,
loose rock at all. Cemented gravel and indurated clay are not, in the proper sense of
the term, loose rock, but they are loose rock within the meaning of the specification;

and ‘solid rock’ includes materials which are not solid rock in the ordinary accepta-
tion of the term.
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When the evidence established that the difference of opinion really turned upon
the different views of the Chief Engineer and the other engineers as to the meaning
of these clauses, it did not seem necessary to prolong the inquiry by summoning
the engineers holding subordinate positions on the staff; but Mr. Richan, a division
engineer on the eastern portion of District ‘F,” upon whose district were the larger
number of all the localities mentioned by Mr. Lumsden in his list, was called and
gave evidence of the manner in which the work was carried on and returns made
upon that division, and similarly evidence was given by Mr. Cressman, resident en-
gineer upon Residency No. 18 of Distriet ‘B.

Having regard to the manner in which the evidence has been given, to the
nature of the questions, and to ihe fact that Mr. Lumsden has not made any charge
affecting the personal integrity of competency of the engineers, it did not seem desir-
able to incur the expense or delay involved in calling the other engineers whose
names have been mentioned.

Referring again to Mr. Lumsden’s statement in Exhibit No. 1, it may be sum-
marized as containing the following statements:—

(1) The general specifications and instructions regarding classification were
not adhered to, but large amounts of material had been returned as solid rock,
which should only have been classified as loose rock or common excavation, and
that material had been returned as loose rock which was or could have been

handled by ploughing or scraping, and should have been returned as common
excavation,

The result of the whole evidence as to this complaint or charge is that Mr. Lums-
den did not agree with the judgment of the engineers on the ground as to the classi-
fication of the material found, and of the description termed by the engineers ‘mixed
material,” and as the proportion of such material which should be classified as solid
rock, loose rock and common excavation respectively.

Mr. Lumsden himself disclaims any intention of charging that the engineers
intentionally disregarded the specification or the interpretation of January, 1908,
(the document referred to as his instructions regarding classification), and it should
be noticed that a great deal of the work had heen done and material classified prior
to January, 1908, when those instructions were given, and while the engineers had
no instructions upon the subject other than the specifications to work from.

(2) The second statement is that on several residencies there seemed to be
no attempt to carry out the instructions of the Chief Engineer and measure rock
returned cither by showing the cross-sections or by measurements of individual
pieces, but that they appeared to have simply guessed at the amount by taking
the percentage of the total cuttings.

With regard to this the witnesses all agree that ledge rock should be measured
and that boulders returned as solid rock because of their exceeding one cubic yard
in measurement should be measured and that ledge rock should be shown upon the
cross-section,

On the other hand, the evidence establishes that the measurement of the pro-
portions of solid rock, loose rock, and common excavation in mixed material is not
possible, and that this can best be estimated by the observations of the resident en-
gineer from day to day. It should be observed, also, that the circular letter of Janu-
ary 30, 1908, which Mr. Lumsden admits were the first general instructions on the
subject, contained for the first time the specific instructions as to measurements—
coupled, however, with the qualification that these should be insisted upon unless
from the nature of the material it was impracticable to obtain them.

The district engineers and their staff who were examined assert that these
instructions were carefully obeyed from the time that they were received, but it seems
that previously there were instances in which the cross-sections did not show the
dividing line between the ledge rock and mixed material overlaying it, and that the
cross-sections did not show separately the amount of material lying inside and out-
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side the slope line where overbreak was returned. The cases in which this occurred
were very few and were not of serious importance.” It appears from the evidence of
Mr. Grant and Mr. Doucet that in the remeasurement, which is taking place; the
corrections are being made and all the information is being given upon the cross
sections,
(8) The third statement is that in some cases where cross-sections were
prepared showing ledge rock, same proved to be erroneous, resulting in a very
much larger amount of the solid rock being returned than actually existed.

The remarks upon the second statement cover this. From the explanatifm gi_veu
in regard to it, it is the repetition in another form of the omissm.n of dividing lines
between ledge rock and assembled rock upon some of the cross-sections.

(4) The fourth statement is that overbreak had been returned in many

places where it was caused by excessive use of explosives; and where the material
was wasted, this ought not to have been done.

As put by Mr. Lumsden here, the propriety of the allowance of overbreak seems
to depend upon the question of whether the material was employed in the construc-
tion of the embankment, or was wasted. This is a partial view of the proper con-
struction of the specification, which provides for the allowance of overbreak where
it is not caused by excessive use of explosives; and although the wasting of it may
in many cases follow careless blasting, the allowance of it does not necessarily depend
upon whether the material is usefully employed or not. It is evident that in many
cases overbreak ought to be paid for although it would not be economy to haul it and
employ it in an embankment.

The evidence as to overbreak shows that it is a matter of judgment between the
engineers of the Commission and the contractors on the one hand, and between the
engineers of the Commission and the engineers of the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway
Company on the other hand, and that any differences on this subject have been and
are being adjusted.

In view of Mr. Lumsden’s evidence, in which he has repeatedly stated that the
real question in difference between himself and his engineers was a difference between
his judgment and theirs as to the allowance of assembled rock or rock in masses,
under clasue 34 of the specification, inasmuch as Mr. Lumsden was the chief engineer,
and the judgments of the engineers having immediate charge of the works were
subordinate to his own, it does not seem that any of the matters which are men-
tioned in Exhibit 1 can be considered as a sufficient reason for his resignation.
There are differences of opinion which might fairly be expected to occur between
himself and such engineers, while the specific causes of complaint mentioned above
relate to matters of comparatively minor importance compared with the difference of
opinion which no doubt existed as to the classification of assembled rock.

F. H. CHRYSLER.

MV
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WepNESDAY, February 16, 1910.

The Special Committee appointed to inquire into the charges and allegations made

by Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden, late Chief Engineer of the National Transcontinental
Railway, met in Room No. 30 at 11 o’clock a.m.

PRESENT :—Messrs. Geoffrion, Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), Wilson (Laval), Lennox,
Barker and Crothers.—1.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald Mr. Geoffrion was chosen as chairman.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald it was

Resolved, That the Board of Commissioners of the National Transcontinental
Railway be notified of the date of the next meeting of the committee, and that a sum-
mons be issued to Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden, late Chief Engineer of ‘the said railway,
to appear at the next meeting for the purpose of defining his position in regard to the
matters which have been referred to the committee.

Mr. Barker moved that an order do issue for the production by the proper officer
of the following papers, viz.:—

1. Contracts, correspondence and papers in regard to Mr. Lumsden’s appointment;
minutes, correspondence, directions and papers as to his authority and duties, and ‘the
performance of his duties, and his retirement.

2. Similar papers to above, and all recommendations as regards the several mem-
bers of the engineering staff from time to time employed on Districts B and F.

3. All construction contracts upon Districts B and F, with the tenders for the
works comprised therein; the data, plans and information upon which the tenders
were figured out; the papers exhibiting such figuring out, and the specifications, ori-
ginal and amended.

Nore.—Where contracts or other forms are common to several works, one only
need be produced, with, as to the others, a memorandum giving necessary particulars.

4. All progress and other estimates as regards such works submitted to the Com-
mission, and the chief engineer’s reports and comments thereon.

5. A statement as regards Distriets B and F, what matters in dispute have been
referred to and are still pending before the arbitration, and what have been disposed of
and in what manner.

6. A statement of the general nature of each such matter in dispute so referred or
so pending of the estimated sums of money and quantities, by classes, involved, and
the location by mile-posts, or other more convenient and particular manner, of such
respective works.

7. All papers and correspondence relating to any matter which had been in dis-
pute and rw}}ich .has been disposed of, whether referred to the arbitrators or not; and

as to the disposition thereof so far as the parties to the arbitration are concerned;
and also as regards the contractors for the work.

Resolved, That an order do issue for the production of the papers mentioned in
the first four paragraphs of the foregoing motion.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was

Resolved, That the committee do recommend that leave be granted to them to
sit while the House is in Session.

35
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The committee adjourned till Tuesday, 22nd instant, at 11 o’clock, a.m.

Attest, Y

VicTOR GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chawrman. Clerk.

Tugspay, February 22, 1910.

The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.
PreseNT :—Messrs. Geoffrion (chairman), Maecdonald, Clarke (Essex), Wilson
(Laval), Barker, Lennox and Crothers—T7.

Mr. R. C. Smith, K.C., informed the committee that he was present to represent
the Board of Commissioners of the National Transcontinental Railway as counsel.

Mr. Barker moved that the committee proceed to the consideration of the
motion made by him at the last meeting of the committee for the production of cer-
tain papers and documents. Mr. Macdonald moved in amendment thereto that con-
sideration of the said motion be allowed to stand for the present, to enable Mr. Lums-
den to be heard, amendment agreed to.

Myr. Lumsden stated that it was not his intention to be represented by counsel.

Mr. Lennox moved that the committee do not proceed with the investigation
until counsel has been engaged on behalf of the publie, in order that the facts may
be fully elicited, it having been announced that Mr. Smith, K.C. appears as counsel
for the Commission, and Mr. Lumsden of being without eounsel.

Mr. Macdonald moved in amendment thereto that the committee proceed to hear
what statement Mr. Lumsden has to make, and on hearing him will, in view of his
having stated that he does not desire counsel, determine what parties, if any should .
be represented by counsel in order to best ascertain the full facts, and the question
being put on the amendment, the committee divided as follows: Yeas—Messrs.
Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson (Laval), 3. Nays—Messrs. Barker, Lennox
and Crothers, 3. The voices being equal the chairman voted yea and declared the
amendment carried. Motion as amended agreed to.

Mr. Barker moved that the committee do now adjourn, which was negatived.

Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden was sworn and produced a statement of the reason for
resigning his position. (See Exhibit No. 1, page 71, of the Evidence.)

Mr. Lumsden also produced a memorandum showing returns of classifica-
tion at certain stations in Distriets B and ¥, and notes thereon made by himself
after personal observation. (See Exhibit No. 2, page 79, of the Evidence.)

Mr. Lumsden was asked to produce at the next meeting of the committee, a state-
ment of the mames of the engineers responsible for the classification on the said
stations so far as he could ascertain or recollect them (together with a statement of
what each engineer had said to him in regard thereto and upon which he had based
his statement that he had lost confidence in a portion of the staff.)

Mr. Lennox moved that committee recommend that their proceedings and the
evidence taken by them be printed and reported to the House from day to day, which
was agreed to.

Committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11 o’clock.
Attest,

VicTorR (GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. 3 Clerl.
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WEDNESDAY, February 23, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m. _ .
PresENT: Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), Wilson
(Laval), Barker, Lennox and Crothers, 7; also Mr. R. C. Smith, K.C,, Counsel for
the Transcontinental Railway Commissioners.

The Minutes of the last meeting was read and confirmed.

Mr. Lumsden produced a memorandum (Exhibit No. 3) giving the names of some
of the engineers in districts B and F in whom he had lost confidence, and a..ttached
thereto (Exhibit No. 8a) a copy of the evidence taken by the Board of Arbitrators,

containing the statements made by the said engineers, and on which he had based in
part his reasons for loss of confidence in them.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald it was

Resolved, That only such portions of the evidence mentioned in the last minute,
as contain the statements made by the engineers named in Mr. Lumsden’s memoran-
dum, be deemed as having been produced before the committee.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald it was

Ordered, That the engineers named 'By Mr. Lumsden in his memorandum be
notified by the Clerk of the proceedings of the committee, and -informed that the

committee will give them an opportunity, on a day to be named, of being heard in
connection therewith, if they so desire.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald it was

Resolved, That the committee recommend that they be authorized to employ

¢ Counsel for the Committee’ to assist them in investigating the matters referred to
them. ¢

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 2 o’clock p.m.

Attest,

Vicror (GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

TrUrsDAY, February 24, 1910.
The committee met at 2 o’clock p.m.
PrESENT :—Messrs., Geoffrion (chairman); Macdonald, Clarke, (Essex), Wilson
(Laval), Barker, and Lennox—®6.
The question of appointing counsel for the committee, as authorized by the
House, was considered. After discussion: it was

Resolved, That the committee meet on Tuesday, March 8, at 11 o’clock a.m., for
the taking of evidence. : ,

The Committee adjourned to the call of the chair.

Attest,

Victor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. - Clent:.

Fripay, March 4, 1910.
The committee met at 2.15 p.m.

Presext: Messrs. Geoffrion (in the chair), Maedonald, Clarke (Essex), Wilson
(Laval). Barker, Lennox and Crothers.—T7.
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The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed.

Discussion re the appointment of counsel for the committee was resumed.

Mr. Barker moved ‘ That it is the right and duty of the members of this com-
mittee who represent the épposition to nominate the counsel who shall prosecute this
investigation in the public interest.’ ;

And the question being put on the said motion, the committee divided as follows:—

YEas: Messrs. Barker, Lennox and Crothers.—3.

Navs: Messrs. Macdonald, Clarke and Wilson.—3.

The Chairman, Mr. Geoffrion, voted nay, and declared the motion lost.

Mr. Lennox then declared his intention of retiring from further service on the
committee.

Mr. Macdonald moved that Mr. Wallace Nesbitt, K.C., be appointed as counsel
for the committee for the purpose of conducting the investigation in the public in-
terest.

After some discussion, Messrs. Barker and Crothers also declared their intention
of retiring from further service on the committee.

After some further discussion, Messrs. Lennox, Barker and Crothers retired from
the room.

And the question being put on Mr. Macdonald’s motion for the appointment of
Myr. Wallace Nesbitt as counsel for the committee, it was agreed to.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was

Ordered, That the clerk do notify Mr. Nesbitt of his appointment as counsel for
the committee, and that he be asked to state when he can be present for the purpose.

The committee adjourned till Tuesday, March 8, at 11 o’clock a.m.

Attest.
Victor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

Turspay, March 8, 1910.

The committee. met at 11 o’clock a.m.

PreseNT: Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex) and Wilson
(Laval).—4.

The minutes of the last meeting were read and amended, and approved as amended.

The Clerk stated that he had notified Mr. Wallace Nesbitt, K.C., of his appoint-
ment as counsel for the committee, and had received a letter in reply, which was read.
(See page 134 of the Evidence.)

On motion of Mr. Clarke, it was _

Resolved, That in view of the position taken by Mr. Nesbitt, K.C., Mr. F. H
Chrysler, K.C., of Ottawa, be appointed as counsel for the committee for the purpose
of conducting the investigation in the interest of the public.

Mr. J. H. Moss, K.C., stated that he appeared at the request and on behalf of the
engineers named by Mr. Lumsden in his statement (Exhibit No. 3) as being the
engineers in whom he had lost confidence, &e.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was
! Resolved, That the said engineers have leave to appear before the committee
“through Mr. J. H. Moss, K.C., as their counsel.

Mr. Lumsden being asked by the Chairman if it were still his desire not to be
represented by counsel replied in the affirmative.

The committee adjourned till Thursday next at 4 o’clock p.m.
¢ Attest.

Viocror GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.
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TrHURSDAY, March 10, 1910.
The committee met at 4 o’clock p.m.

Presexts—Messrs, Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Laval)—4.

The minutes of the last meeting were read and confirmed.

Mr. CurysLEr, K.C., asked permission to put in printed copies of letter§ as con-
tained in the Hodgins Inquiry of 1908, and in Sessional Paper No. 42a, laid before
the House during the present session, stating that the originals could be produced
for purpose of identification if necessary.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald Mr. Chrysler’s request was acceded to.

Mr. H. D. LuMsbeN was examined by Mr. Chrysler, K.C.

During the examination the following books and letters were filed and marked
as exhibits:—

No. 4. Letter dated June 25, 1909—Lumsden to Hon. G. P. Graham.
¥ 4a. Letter dated June 25, 1909—Lumsden to Commissioners.
. Letter dated June 26, 1909—Lumsden to Commissioners.
. General Specifications, N. T. Railway.

“ 5
6
7. General Instructions to Inquirers. :
8
9

&

. Letter dated September 24, 1907—Lumsden to Commissioners.
. Letter dated September 26, 1907—P. E. Ryan to Lumsden.
“ 10. Letter dated October 7, 1907—H. A. Woods to Lumsden.
“ 11. Letter dated October 18, 1907—Lumsden to Commissioners.
“ 12. Letter dated October 18, 1907—P. E. Ryan to Lumsden.
“ 13. Letter dated October 30, 1907—Lumsden to Commissioners.
“ 14. Letter dated November 11, 1907—Lumsden to Commissioners.
. Letter dated November 23, 1907—P. E. Ryan to Hon. G. P. Graham.

“ 16. Letter dated Dec. 5, 1907—Hon. G. P. Graham to Hon. S. N. Parent.
* 17. Letter dated December 16, 1907—Lumsden to Commissioners.
“ 18. Letter dated Dec. 20, 1907~P. E. Ryan to Hon. A. B. Aylesworth.
“ 19. Letter dated January 6, 1908—E. L. Newcombe to Commissioners.
€ 20. Letter dated January 9, 1908—Lumsden to Commissioners.

“ 20a. Diagram illustrating H. D. Lumsden’s interpretation of specifi-

cations.

“ 21. Letter dated January 80, 1908—Lumsden to A. E. Doucet.

“ 29, Letter dated January 80, 1908—Lumsden to A. E. Doucet.

“ 923. Letter dated April 24, 1908—Lumsden to Commissioners.

“ 924, Letter dated October 8, 1908—Lumsden to Commissioners.
At 6 o’clock, p.m., the committee rose.

The committee resumed at 8.15 p.m.

Examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Chrysler, K.C., was continued.
The following papers were filed as exhibits:—
No. 25. Letter dated July 8, 1908S—T. A. Woods to Lumsden.

“ 26. Letter dated March 16, 1909—Tumsden and Kelliher to Collingwood
Schreiber.
DT

. Letter dated May 14, 1909 (with agreement)—E. J. Chamberlin to
Lumsden.

“ 28. Letter dated May 15, 1909—TLumsden to E. J. Chamberlin.

The examination in chief of Mr. Tumsden by Mr. Chrysler, K.C., was concluded.
The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11.15 a.m.

Attest,

VicTror (GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.
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Frinay, March 11, 1910.
The committee met at 11.15 a.m.

PrESENT :~Messrs. Geoffrion, (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Laval)—4.

The minutes of the last meeting were read and approved.
Mr. Syura, K.C., examined Mr. Lumsden on behalf of the Commissioners.

The following papers were filed as exhibits:—

No. 30. Letter dated September 8, 1904.
“ 31. Letter dated December 13, 1907.
“ 82. Letter dated June 20, 1906.
“ 33. Letter dated November 16, 1908.
“ 34, Statement of names of engineers in cuts in District B., mentioned

by Mr. Lumsden in his statement (Exhibit No. 2). :

“ 35. Similar statement regarding District F.

The committee adjourned‘till Tuesday, March 15, at 11 o’clock, a.m.

: Attest,
VicTor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,

Chairman. Clerk.

TuespAay, March 15, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.

PRESENT :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex) and Wilson
(Laval).—4. .

The minutes of the last meeting were read and confirmed.
The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., was continued.

The following papers were filed and marked as exhibits:—

No. 36.—Letter dated November 23, 1905, Lumsden to A. E. Doucet.

No. 37—Letter dated November 9, 1907, A. E. Hodgins to S. N, Parent.
No. 38.—Letter dated November 19, 1907, Lumsden to S. N. Parent.

No. 39.—Letter dated August 24, 1907, S. N. Parent to Lumsden.

No. 40.—Letter dated August 24, 1907, Lumsden to A. E. Hodgins.

No. 41.—Letter dated November 21, 1907, S. N. Parent to A. E. Hodgins.

The committee rose at one o’clock p.m.

4 o’clock, p.m.
The committee resumed.

Examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., continued.

The following papers were filed and marked as exhibits:—

No. 42.—Letter of October 26, 1907, A. E. Doucet to Lumsden.

No. 43.—Letter of October 26, 1907, H. F. Huestis to A. E. Doucet.

No. 44.—TLetter of October 26, 1907, C. L. Hervey to A. E. Doucet.

No. 45.—Declaration, October 26, 1907, B. Bourgeois.

No. 46.—Letter of October 26, 1907, A. R. Matthews to A. E. Doucet.

No. 47.—Opinion of Messrs. Shepley and Lafleur, K.Cs., re Classification,

No. 48.—Supplementary opinion of Messrs. Shepley and Lafleur, K.Cs., re Classi-
fication.

No. 49.—Opinion of Mr. C. H. Ritchie, K.C., re Classification.
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No. 50.—Opinion of Sir A. Lacoste, K.C., 7e Classiﬁc_atioq.
No. 51.—Opinion’ of Mr. S. Beaudin, K.C., re Classification.

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11 o’clock a.m.

Attest,

VicTor (GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

WeDNESDAY, Maren 16, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.

Present:—Messrs. Geoffrion (chairman) ; Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
son (Laval)—4.

The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., was continued:
The following exhibits were filed, viz.:

No. 52.—Opinion of Donald Macmaster, K.C., on specifications.
No. 53.—Opinion of Wallace Nesbitt, K.C., on specifications.

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 3.30 _o’clock, p.m.

Attest,

V10ToR (GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

R TrURsDAY, March 17, 1910.
The committee met at 3.30 o’clock p.m.

PRESENT :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
son (Laval)—4.

Mr. Lumsden’s examination by Mr. Smith, K.C., was continued.

The follow Exhibits were filed, viz.:—

No. 54 Letter February 20, 1908—H. A. Woods to H. D. Lumsden.
“ 55 Letter January 14, 1908—H. D. Lumsden to A. E. Doucet.
56 Letter May 15, 1908—H. D. Lumsden to H. A. Woods.
57 Extract from Minutes of meeting of Commissioners at Ottawa nn
July 14, 1909.
58 Blue print showing sketch where boulders exist.

At the suggestion of Mr. Macdonald the Clerk, Mr. Todd, made a statement ex-
planatory of the circumstances under which the words ¢and reported to the House’
were omitted from the Second Report of the committee presented to the House on
the 22nd February last, though such words were included in the motion of Mr. Len-
nox as agreed to on that day, and on which the said Report was based. (For this
statement see page 302 of the Evidence.)

Mr. Macdonald moved that the committee, in pursuance of the power to report
from time to time conferred upon them by the Order of Reference, do consider the
question of making a Report to the House, submitting their Proceedings to date, and

that the clerk be directed to prepare the said Report and submit the same to the com-
mittee for its approval, which was agreed to.

«©
@

«©

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11 o’clock a.m.

Attest,

Victor GEOFFRION, WAtTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.
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Frmay March 18, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.

Presents—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Maecdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
son (Laval)—4. z

The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., was continued.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald it was

Resolved—That the committee meet on Thursday, March 31, at 11 o’clock a.m.
for the purpose of hearing further evidence, and on Monday, March 21, at 8.30
o’clock, p.m. for the purpose of considering the question of presenting an interim
Report to the House.

The committee adjourned till Monday at 8.30 o’clock p.m.

Attest,
Viocror GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

MoxpAay, March 21, 1910.
The committee met at 8.30 o’clock p.m.

PresenT :—Messrs. Geoffrion, (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
son (Laval)—4.

The minutes of March 17 and 18 were read and confirmed.

On motion of Mr. Clarke it was -

Resolved—That in pursuance of the power to report from time to time conferred
by the Order of Reference, the committee do now report to the House its Proceed-
ings, including the Evidence, up to and inclusive of this meeting.

Pursuant to the Resolution of the 17th instant, the Clerk laid on the table a
draft Report submitting the Proceedings and Evidence to the House, which was
adopted as the Report of the Committee and ordered to be presented on Tuesday,
22nd instant.

The committee adjourned till Thursday, March 31, at 11 o’clock a.m.

Attest,

VicTor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

TuaurspAY, March 31, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock, a.m.

PreseNTs—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
son (Laval).—4.
The minutes of March 21 were read and confirmed.
The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., was continued.
The following exhibits were filed :—
No. 59.—Letter May 20, 1909, H. D. Lumsden to A. G. Macfarlane.
No. 60.—Blue print, ‘ Form 4,” showing work done to May 31, 1908, from mile
139 to mile 150 in District F.
No. 61.—Letter September 21, 1908, H. D. Lumsden to A. E. Doucet.
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No. 62.—Letter September 23, 1908, H. D. Lumsden to A. E. Doucet.
Committee adjourned till to-morrow.

Attest, WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

Frioay, April 1, 1910.

The committee met at 11" o’clock a.m.

Present:—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Laval).—4.

The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith; K.C., was continued.
The committee adjourned till Monday at 4 o’clock p.m.

Attest, WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

Moxpay, April 4, 1910.
The committee met at 4 o’clock p.m.

Present:—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex) and
Wilson (Laval).—4.

The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr, Smith, K.C., was continued.

At six o’clock the committee rose.

8.30 p.m.
The committee resumed.
The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., was continued.
The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 63.—Circular letter of- H. D. Lumsden, dated February 11, 1909, re “over-
break in rock cuttings.’

No. 64.—Letter dated 25th February, 1909. H. A. Woods to H. D. Lumsden.
The committee adjourned till Tuesday, April 12, at 11 o'clock a.m.
Attest,

Vicror GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.
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TuespayY, April 12, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.

Present—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman) ; Macdonald, Clarke (Essex) and Wilson
(Laval), 4.

The examination in chief of Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden by Mr. Smith, K.C., was
concluded.

The committee rose at 1 o’clock p.m.

- April 12, 3.30 p.m.
The committee resumed.

Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden was examined by Mr. Moss, K.C.
The committee rose at 6 p.m.

o April 12, 8.15 p.m.
The committee resumed.

_Examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Moss, K.C., was continued.
The following exhibits were filed:

No. 65, photograph of cut at station 6034 to 6040 at La Tuque after blasting.
No. 66, photograph of cut at station 6034 to 6040 after slope was dressed.

No. 67, photograph of cut at station 6040 being taken down to grade.

No. 68, photograph of cut at station 6040 showing other end of cut.

No. 69, photograph of cut at station 6040 showing second lift.

Mr. A. E. Doucet, C.E., was sworn and identified the foregoing exhibits.
The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11 o’clock a.m.

Attest,

Victor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerl.

WEeDNESDAY, April 13, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.

PreSENT :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
gon (Laval).—4.

The examination of Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden by Mr. Moss, K.C., was continued.

The following exhibits were filed:—

No. 70 Cross Section Sheet No. 16, Residency No. 19, District F.
No. T & 5 a7 g No. 19 “
No. 12 5 e 14 % No. 19 &

The committee rose at 1 o’clock p.m.

3.30 p.m.
The committee resumed.

The examination of Mr. Lumsden by Mr. Moss, K.C., was continued.
The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 78.—Letter June 22, 1909, S. R. Poulin to Hon. Mr. Parent.
No. 74—Letter June 23, 1909, A. E. Doucet to Hon. Mr. Parent.

The Committee rose at 6 o’clock p.m.
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April 13, 8.30 p.m
The committee resumed.
Mr. Gordon Grant, Chief Engineer, Transcontinental Railway, was sworn and
examined by Mr. Chrysler, K.C., and Mr, Smith, X.C.
The following exhibits were produced:—

No. 75 Letter August 24, 1909, Gordon Grant to Commissioners.
No. 76 Diagram re overbreak.
No. 77 Letter Sept 14, 1909, Gordon Grant to Commissioners.

No. 78 iy 20, 1909 3 v
The Committee adjourned till tomorrow at 11 o’clock, a.m. -
Attest,
VICTOR GEOFFRION, . WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

THURSDAY, April 14, 1910.

The committee met at 11 o’clock, a.m.

PreseNT:—Messrs. Geoffrion (chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Laval)—4.
% Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden was further examined by Messrs. Chrysler and Smith,
K.C’s, and his examination-in-chief closed.

The following exhibits were filed:—

No. 79. Notes of arbitration trip, District ‘B, by H. E. Huestis, C.E.

No. 80. Sketch showing grade line and surface line on profiles, and illustrating

how errors might be made in estimating quantities from profiles.
No. 82. Letter, May 17, 1909, Mr. Lumsden to Mr. Schreiber.

The committee rose at 1 o’clock, p.m.

3.30 p.m.
The committee resumed.

Mr. Gordon Grant’s examination was resumed.

The following exhibits were filed:—

No. 83. Sketch illustrating side hill work on St. Maurice river.
3 No. 84. Statement of estimated quantities of solid rock, &c., and actual quanti-
ties of each returned to December 31, 1909.

The committee adjourned till to-morrow.
Attest,

Victor Grorrrio, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. Clerk.

Frmay, April 15, 1910.
The committee met at 11 o’clock, a.m.
PRESENT: Messrs. Geoffrion (chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Layal)—4.
Mr. A. E. Doucet, district engineer of ‘B’ was examined by Mr. Chrysler.



46 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

9-10 EDWARD VIl., A. 1910
The following exhibits were filed:—
No. 85. Statement showmg districts, mileages and work done to December 31,
1909.
No. 86. Letter February 1, 1908, A. E. Doucet to H. D. Lumsden.
No. 87. Letter February 19, 1908, H. D. Lumsden to A. E. Douecet.
No. 88. Letter February 20, 1908, A. E. Doucet to H. D. Lumsden.
No. 89. Sketech showing cross-section of cemented boulders or rock in masses.

The committee adjourned till Monday next, at 3.30 p.m.

Attest,
VicTor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. . Clerk.

Moxpay, April 18, 1910.'
The committee met at 3.30 p.m.

Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald and Clarke (Essex).—3.
The examination of Mr. A. E. Doucet, C.E., by Mr. Chrysler, was continued.

The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 90.—Blue print of imaginary cross-sections, sent by Mr. Huestis to Mr.
Doucet.

No 91.—Letter, January 27, 1908, H. E. Huestis to A. E. Doucet, inclosing
foregoing blue print.

No. 92—Blue print showing actual measurements in prisms, overbreaks, &e.

No. 93.—Blue print showing cross-sections at stations 5322-25 to 5338.

No. 94.—Comparative statement of original and remeasured quantities in cut
5324 to 5328.

No. 95.—Three blue prints showing cross-sections on whole of cutting at stations
6824 to 6830.

No. 96.—Six blue prints showing cross-sections at stations 6947 to 6959.

No. 97.—Five blue prints showing ecross-sections at stations 6761-6770.

No. 98.—Statement of cuts mentioned by Mr. Lumsden.

The committee rose at 6 p.m.

8.30 pm.
The examination of Mr. Doucet was continued by Mr. Chrysler and Mr. Moss.

The following exhibits were filed:—

No. 99.—Part of profile of District ‘B, illustrating difference between quanti-
ties calculated from surface at centre line and height inside slope on hill-side work.

No. 100.—Comparative statement of cost of 150 miles west from Quebec Bridge
as between estimates of 1906 and final estimates of 1909.

No. 101.—Extract from ¢ Toronto Mail’ re reconstruction of T. & N. O. Railway
line in vicinity of North Bay .

No. 102.—Affidavit of June 19, 1908, of Mr. Armstrong, C.E., re classification
in Distriet ¢ B”

Mr. Doucet’s examination in chief was concluded.

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11.30 a.m.

Attest,
VicTor GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chairman. : Clerk.

e egre. Y
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Tuespay, April 19, 1910.
The committee met at 11.30 a.m.

Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdenald, Clarke (Essex), and Wl]SO\l
(Laval).—4.
Mr. H. E. Huestis, Assistant District Engineer of ‘B,’ was sworn and examined.
The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 103.—Four photographs showing ¢ gravel’ or cemented material at La Tuque.
No. 104.—Photograph showing different lifts in cutting.

The committee rose at 1 o’clock.

3.30 p.m.
Mr. Huestis’ examination was concluded.

Mr. A. E. Doucet was recalled and further examined by Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. S. R. Poulin, District Engineer of ‘F’ was sworn and examined by Mr.
Chrysler.

The committee rose at 6 o’clock.

8.30 p.m.
Mr. Poulin’s examination was continued.

The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 105.—Circular Major Hodgins to Divisional Engineers on ¢ F,” dated Feb-
ruary, 1907.

No. 106.—Letter, Nov. 8, 1907, S. R. Poulin to H. D. Lumsden.
No. 107.—Letter, S. R. Poulin to Divisional Engineers on ‘F; dated February
4, 1908.
The Committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11.15 o’clock a.m.
VICTOR (GEOFFRION,
Chairman.

Attest, WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

WEDNESDAY, April 20, 1910.
The committee met at 11.15 a.m.
Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald and Wilson (Laval) —3.
The examination of Mr. Poulin was continued.
The following exhibits were filed:—
No. 108.—Six photographs, Residency 24, District ‘F, showing difference in
slopes immediately after removal of material and after completion.

No. 109.—Two photographs showing indurated clay and loose rock.
No. 110.—Photograph showing indurated clay after rain.

No. 111.—Comparative statement engineers’ estimate in ‘F’ for S.R., LR.,
C.E.,, and T. F., McArthur contract.

No. 112.—Comparative statement of estimated cost (1906) and actual cost of
construction, McArthur contract, District ¢F.

No. 113.—List of items omitted in Hodgins’ original estimate and included in
Poulin’s estimate of January 11, 1908.

The committee rose at 1 o’clock.
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3.30 p.m.

Examination of Mr. S. R. Poulin continued.

The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 114—Comparison of estimated cost of portions of C. P. Railway with ac-
tual amount paid to contractors.

No. 115.—Evidence as amended given by Mr. Poulin before arbitrators.

The committee rose at 6 p.m.

8.30 p.m.

Examination of Mr. Poulin was concluded.
George F. Richan, C.E., divisional engineer, 5 and 6 in ‘F, was sworn and
examined by Mr. Chrysler.
The Committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11.15 a.m.
y Attest,
ViIcTOR (GEOFFRION, WALTER TODD,
Chazrman. Clerk.

TrUrsDAY, April 21, 1910.

The committee met at 11.15 a.m.
Present:—Messrs. Geoffrion, Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson (Laval)

—4.
The examination of Mr. Richan was concluded.

Mr. A. E. Doucet was recalled and further examined.

The committee rose at 1 o’clock p.m.

3.30 p.m.

The committee resumed.

Mr. J. A. Polkinghorne, Clerk of Sessional Papers, was sworn, and submitted a
list of Returns made during the present session regarding the Transcontinental Rail-
way, of which the following were produced, viz.: Nos. 42-h, 42-i, and 42-j, and the
remaining numbers were ordered to be procured as soon as possible and sent to the
Clerk of the Committee.

Mr. S. R. Poulin was recalled and further examined.

The following exhibits were filed :—

No. 116.—Comparative statement of estimate of January 11, 1908, and previous

estimate, marked ¢Final location,” District ‘F.
No. 117.—Comparative statement engineers’ estimate of 1908 and cost of con-

struction, McArthur contract, District ‘F.
Mr. G. F. Richan was recalled and further examined.

The following exhibit was produced :—

No. 118.—List of cuttings and borrow pits in Division 5, Distriet ¢ F,” mentioned
in Mr. Lumsden’s memorandum. :

Mr. H. B. Cressman, resident engineer on Residency No. 28, Division No. 7,
District ‘B, was sworn and examined.

The committee rose at 6 o’clock p.m.

e =S 2 eimreiyyirsiogiss
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8.30 P.M.

The committee resumed.
Mr. S. R. Poulin, district engineer of ‘F, was recalled and further examined.
The following exhibit was filed :— ;

119—List of cuts in District ‘F,” mentioned in Mr. Lumsden’s memorandum,
exclusive of Division No. 5.

Mr. H. B. Cressman’s examination was continued.
The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 11 o’clock.
Attest,

¥

WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

Fripay, April 22, 1910.
The Committee met at 11 o’clock a.m.

Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman), Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wil-
son (Laval)—4.

The examination of Mr. H. B. Cressman was concluded.
The Committee adjourned till Tuesday, 26th inst., at 11.30 a.m.
Attest,

WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

Turspay, April 26, 1910.
The committee met at 11.30 a.m.

Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman); Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Laval)—4.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was

Ordered, That a telegram be sent immediately to Mr. H. A Woods, assistant
chief engineer, Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company, requiring his attendance at
the meeting of the committee this evening.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was

Ordered, That a telegram be sent to Mr. H. D. Lumsden, informing him that the

taking of evidence will be closed to-morrow, and asking him if he desires to make
any further statement.

The committee adjourned till 8.30 p.m. this day.

April 26, 1910.
The committee met at 8.30 p.m.

Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman) ; Macdonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson
(Laval)—4.

The Clerk reported that he had received a telegram from Mr. H. A. Woods that
he was unable to leave Montreal to-day, but would endeavour to do so to-morrow after-
noon. Also that he had, under instructions from the Chairman, wired Mr. Woods
again to be present to-morrow without fail.

3—4



50 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

9-10 EDWARD VIl.,, A. 1910

Mr. Charles J. Jones, sécretary to Mr. Lumsden at the time of the arbitration
tour, was sworn and examined, and discharged from further attendance.

Mr. Gordon Grant, C.E., was recalled and further examined, and discharged from
further attendance.

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at moon.

Attest, WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

WebNESDAY, April 27, 1910.

The committee met at.noon.
Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman) ; Macedonald, Clarke (Essex), and Wilson

(Laval)—4.

Mr. P. E. Ryan, secretary to the Transcontinental Railway Commission, was
sworn and examined, and discharged from further attendance.

The Clerk reported the receipt of a telegram from Mr. H. A. Woods, that he would
arrive in Ottawa by the evening train and be in attendance upon the committee.

The committee adjourned till 8.30 p.m.
Attest, WALTER TODD,

Clerk.

WEeDNESDAY, April 27, 1910.

The committee met at 8.30 p.m.
Present :—Messrs. Geoffrion (Chairman) ; Macdonald, Clarke (Esse}x), and Wilson

(Laval)—4.
Mr. H. A. Woods, assistant chief engineer, Grand Trunk Pacific Railway, was

sworn and examined, and discharged from further attendance.

Letter of Allan R. Matthews, resident engineer of Residency 26, District ‘B,
dated October 26, 1907, to A. E. Doucet, district engineer of ‘B, was filed as Exhibit

No. 120.

Mr. Chrysler stated that he had notified Mr. Lumsden of the meeting to-night,
in order that he might be present to make any further statement he might desire to
make, but he was under the impression that Mr. Lumsden was out of town.

*  The Clerk stated that he had ascertained from Mrs. Lumsden yesterday that her
husband, so far as she knew, was at the Chateau Frontenac, Quebee, but might be on
the way home; that he had wired to Mr. Lumsden at Quebec, but had received no
reply. That he had telephoned to Mr. Lumsden’s house to-day, and ascertained that
he was expected home this evening, and that he (the Clerk) had left word for Mr.
Lumsden to ring him up as soon as he returned, but that he had not done so yet.

The committee adjourned till to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.

Attest, WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

TSNNSO 'S
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THURSDAY, April 28, 1910.
The committee met at 10.30 a.m.

PrESENTS—Messrs.  Geoffrion  (chairman), Macdonald, Clarke : (Essex), and
Wilson (Laval).—4.

A Factum prepared by Mr. F. H. Chrysler, K.C., was laid on the table and
ordered to be printed in the proceedings. (For this Factum see page 21.)

The chairman submitted a draft form of Report, embodying the findings of the
committee on the matters referred to them, which was read. 3 :

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was
Resolved, That the above draft Report be adopted as the report of the committee.

Ordered, That the Report of the committee as adopted be presented to the House
this day, together with the exhibits, and minutes of proceedings and evidence not
already laid on the Table of the House, viz., from March 31 to April 28, both in-
clusive. (For this report see Fifth Report of the Committee, page 8.)

The committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Attest,
VICTOR (GEOFFRIN,

Chairman.

WALTER TODD,
Clerk.

TuespAY, May 3, 1910.
The committee met at noon.

PrESENT :—Messrs, Geoffrion (chairman); Macdonald and Wilson (Laval)—3.

The clerk reported the receipt of a letter from Mr. Lumsden explaining that the
notice of the last meeting of the Committee for the taking of evidence (April 27)
had not been received by him until the 28th April upon his return to Of,tawa after a
week’s absence, hence the reason for his not being present at that meeting.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was '

Resolved, That in the opiniin of the committee it is desirable that the House
should pay proper and reasonable fees to the counsel representing the Transcon-
tinental Railway Commissioners, and to the counsel representing the engineers before

the committee in this case, and that a report recommending such payments be pre-
sented in the House by the chairman. et

On motion of Mr. Wilson (Laval), it was et

Ordered, That the following engineers who gave evidence before the committee
though not formally summoned to appear, be paid the usual allowance and expeg:s.
made to witnesses before parliamentary committees, viz.: A. E. Doucet, C.E., Quebec;
8. R. Poulin, C.E., Winnipeg; H. F. Huestis, C.E., Quebec; George F. Richan, C.E,
Wabigoon Falls, Ont., and H. B. Cressman, Quebec.

A letter having been read from Mr. Lumsden asking fo.r remuneration for loss of
time occupied in attendance before the committee, on motion of Mr. Macdonald, i
was

Resolved, That a report be made to the House recommending .the paymem;, of
compensation to Mr. Lumsden for a period of 23 dayg, on the llams of the ;ae 81('){)
received by him as Chief Engineer of the Transcontinental Railway, viz.: %6,
per annum.

3—43
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On motion of Mr. Macdonald, it was
Ordered, That the accounts of Mr. Bengough for stenographic work in connec-
tion with the preparation of the Factum of Counsel and the Report of the Com-
mittee be certified by the clerk for payment.
The committee adjourned. '

Attest,
Victor (GEOFFRIN,

 Chairman.

WALTER TODD,
Clerk.
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LUMSDEN INQUIRY.

SYNOPSIS OF EXHIBITS.

No. Date. Writer., Subject.
1 .|H. D. Lumsden....... Memo. giving his reasons for resigning his position of Chief
Engineer of the Transcontinental Railway.
(Printed on Page 71 of the evidence.)
PSS iR |Statement (illustrative) of places where material returned as
" solid rock should have been loose rock or common excava-
tion,
1910. | (Printed on Page 79 of the evidence.)
3 |Feb. 23... T e e U |List of engineers on sections B and F in whom he lost con-
fidence. >
(Printed on Page 92 of the evidence.) :
BB b e e SR .- - Statements made under oath by engineers referred to as being
| resgonsible for improper classification, &c.
1909, | (Printed on Page 93 of the evidence.)
4 |June 25.. 1T e [Letter to Minister of Railways, inclosing copy of letter
[ addressed Commissioners of the Transcontinental Railway
\ and requesting to be relieved of the duties of Chief Engi-
neer.
| (Printed on Page 137 of the evidence.) £ e
4alJune 25... ke il \Letter to Commissioners, Transcontinental Railway resigning
| position as Chief Engineer. ’
| (Printed on Page*38 of the evidence). : !
5 |June 26.., AL e T Letter to Commissioners of the Transcontinental Railway, in-
| timating that his loss of confidence in the engineering staff
only applied to a portion of the staff.
(%rinted on Page 138 of the evidence.) ?
2 DA PPN of (s bR uls (T A Specifications (general) and form of tender and contract (1909).
(Referred to on Page 139 of the evidence). i
e el et i e S Booklet containing general instructions to civil engineers con-
cerning surveys and construction.
1907. (Referred to on Page 142 of the evidence.) 3
8 |Sept. 24.. i T e L Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway re situa-
tion in District ‘ F,’ and recommends appointment of S. R.
Poulin as successor to A. E. Hodgins and G. O. Foss, as his
assistant. :
(Printed on Page 145 of the evidence.)
9 |Sept. 26.../Sec. Nat. Trans. Ry .... Letter to H. D. Lumsden, communicating Boards approval of
foregoing recommendation. -
(l’gr(i)nt.ed on Page 147 of the evidence.) ; -
10 |Oct. G BB S Wiobds, 5.0 o Letter to H. D. Lumsden; protesting against classification of
material on District ‘ B. e
(Printed on Page 148 of the evidence.) " 7
11 [Oct., 18.../H. D. Lumsden....... Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway, inclosing
September estimate in District ‘ B,” and giving reasons for
his approval thereof. 5
A (Printed on Page 149 of the evidence.)
12 |Oct.  18...|Sec. Nat. Trans. Ry ....|Letter to H. D. Lumsden, advising him of approval by Board
of September estimates. .
(Printed on Page 150 of the ewgience.{ ; .
13 [Oct.  30.../H. D. Lumsden..... , Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway, reporting
re his visit to La Tuque. -
(Printed on Page 151 of the evidence. : e
14 (Nov. 11. i e s Letter to Commissioners Transcontineneal Railway, stating he
will approve of October estimates under certain conditions.
(Printed on Page 153 of the evidence.) o
15 [Nov. 28...|Sec. Trans. Ry........ Letter to the Hon. Minister of Railways transmitting corIl"ﬁ-
spondence 7¢ complaint made to Chief Engineer (H. = )
by the Assistant Engineer Grand Trunk Pacific Railway
C}(,)mpany as to classification in District ‘B.

(Printed on Page 154 of the evidence.)
53
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SYNOPSIS OF EXHIBITS—Continued.

No.

16

17

18

19

20a

21 |

26

26

27

28

31

32

Date.

Writer.

[
|

Subject.

1907.

Dee. . °b:::

Dees - 16.5.

Dec. 20...

1908.
Jan. 6...

T 80. ..

April 24...

July 8..

1909.
Marx 16, ..

May 14...

May 15..

1904,
Sept. 8...

1907.
Dee: .« 13

1906.
June 20...

H. D. Lumsden.........

Sec., Trans Ry....c.ics

Deputy Minister Justice.

e 1 H. D. Lumsden.........

g |‘ H. X, Woods o wavoee

H. D. Lumsden and B.
B. Kelliher.

E. J. Chamberlin.... ..

H. D. Lumsden.........

Hon. Minister Railways. Letter to Chairman Transcontinental Railway returning cor-

respondence bearing upon the classification of work, with
request that Commissioners take such action as seems to
them necessary.

(Printed on Page 155 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway submitting
his interpretation of specifications.

(Printed on Page 156 of the evidence.)

Letter to Hon. Minister of Justice submitting correspondence
re complaint made to Chief Engineer (H. D. L.) by Assistant
Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company, as regards classifi-
cation, and requesting interpretation of certain clauses of
specifications for construction.

(Printed on Page 157 of the evidence.)

Letter to Secretary Transcontinental Commissioners giving

his interpretation of specifications.
(Printed on Page 158 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway giving his

revised interpretation of specification.
(Printed on Page 159 of the evidence).

Diagram illustrating Chief Engineer’s (H. D. L.) interpreta-
tion of specifications.

(Printed on Page 160 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet inclosing copy of his interpretation of
specifications and requesting to be informed whether classifi-
cation in his district conforms to such interpretation.

(Printed on Page 161 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet stating that actual measurements must
be made as a rule of all work.

(Printed on Page 163 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway communi-
catinﬁ letters received from Assistant Chief Engineer Grand
Trunk Pacific Railway Company (H. A. Woods) protesting
to the classification on about 153 miles of District ‘F.’

(Printed on Page 164 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissivners Transcontinental Railway Compan
stating he wrote Assistant Chief Engineer Grand Trun
Pacific Railway Company suggesting certain names to act as
third arbitrator.

(Printed on Page 165 ot the evidence.)

Letter to H. D. Lumsden stating Grand Trunk Pacific Rail-
way Company still vigorously, protests to the classification
as returned to date.

(Printed on Page 167 of the evidence.)

Letter to C. Schreiber requesting him to act as third arbitra-
tor for the determination of questions now in dispute be-
tween them.

(Printed on Page 171 of the evidence.)

Letter to H. D. Lumsden inclosing for signature form of
agreement covering matters to be arbitrated, pertaining to
the Eastern Division.

(Printed on Page 172 of the evidence.)

Letter to E. J. Chamberlin acknowledging foregoing and stat-
ing that Commissioners consider that execution of such
agreement is unnecessary and all that is required is for the
three engineers to arbitrate matters of classification, &e.

(Printed on Page 174 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissioners, Transcontinental Railway, recom-
mending appointment of M. J, Butler, A. E. Doucet, A. E.
Molesworth, Bourgeois, Gordon, Miles, Malloch, Hoare,
and Foss. :

(Printed on Page 191 of the evidence.)

Letters to Commissioners, Transcontinental Railway, inclosing

copies of list of changes in the Engineering Staff,
(Printed on Page 192 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissioners, Transcontinental Railway, recom-
mending appointments of Divisional and Resident Engin-
eers in District ‘K.’

(Printed on Page 192 of the evidence.)
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SYNOPSIS OF EXHIBITS—Continued.

34

35
36

37

39

40
41

42

43
H
46
47
48
49
51
52
51

55

a6

Date.

Writer.

Subject.

{Oct.

Oct.

Oct.
Oct.
Oct.

Oct.

Nov.

Aug.
Nov.

Nov.

Nov.
Nov.
Nov.

Nov.

Feb.

Jan.

May

1908,
p [ 1R

2y

24...
255

267,

13...

137,
20...
18..
31..
26. .

1908.
206

14. ..

15

.|A. E. Hodgins........

./Hugh D. Lumsden

.|Chairman,

.1A. E. Doucet

oz}

.|A. R. Matthews
.|G. P. Sheple;
1 Y

.1C. H. Ritchie,

.{D. MacMaster
.|W. Nesbitt

Chairman, Transcontin-
ental Railway

H. D. Lumsden

Transcontin-
ental Railway

Q
=
jus}
3
<
@
-

o BOUIRe0IR. i ey oo

i, Laflewr.. ..ouoveens s

.|8. Beaudin.. ....... .

{H. D. Lumsden

Letter to H. D.

Letter to Commissioners, Transcontinental Railway, submit-
ting for approval letter from District Engineer Poulin,
recommending certain appointments.

(Printed on Page 193 of the evidence).
Statement of names of engineers in cuts in District * B’ men-
tioned by H. D). Lumsden in his statement (exhibit No. 2).
(Printed on Page 195 of the evidence.)
Statement similar to the foregoing regarding District ¢ F..
(Printed on Page 199 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet requesting to be supplied with plans
and profiles and quantities to cover 100 miles westerly from
Quebec Bridge.

(Printed on Page 211 of the evidence.)

.|Letter to Chairman, Transcontinental Railway, sment his

dismissal.
(Printed on page 217 of the evidence.)

Letter to Chairman, Transcontinental Railway, stating that
Major Hodgins took responsibility of issuing instrcctions to
his Division Engineers without authority.

(Printed on Page 219 of the evidence.)
etter to H. D. Lumsden inclosing copy of memo. sent secret-
a‘niy’of Board 7e unsatisfactory progress of work in District

(Printed on Page 220 of the evidence.)
Letter to A. E. Hodgins confirming cypher telegram stating
that classification must be as per contract and specifications.

(Printed on Page 222 of the evidence.)
Letter to A. E. Hodgins inclosing copy of H. D. Lumsden’s
reply to his letter.
(Printed on Pafe 223 of the evidence.)
umsden communicating interpretation of
engineers in District ‘ B’ placed on classification of solid and

loose rock.

(Printed on Page 232 of the evidence.) ]
Letter to A. E. Doucet communicating his interpretation of
specifications. :

(Printed on Page 233 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet, same as foregoing.

(Printed on Page 235 of the evidence.)

\Letter to A. E. Doucet, same as foregoing.

(Printed on Page 236 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet, same as foregoing.

(Printed on Pages 240 and 771 of the evidence.) )
Letter to M. P. Davis giving their interpretation of certain
clauses of specifications.
(Printed on Page 245 of the evidence.) =
Letter to M. P. Davis expressing their views as to the plassxh;
cation of loose rock made by local engineers in District * B.
(Printed on Page 248 of the evidence.) ST
Letter to M. P. Davis giving his interpretation of specifications.
(Printed on Page 248 of the evidence.)
Letter to M. P. Davis, same as foregoing.
(Printed on Page 254 of the evidence.)
Letter to M. P. Davis, same as foregoing,
(Printed on Page 259 of the evidence).
Letter to M. P. Davis, same as foregoing.
(Printed on e 259 of the evidence.) -
Letter to Macdonald & O’Brien, same as foregoing.
(Printed on Page 263 of the evidence.)

H. A Woods, -on o iens Letter to H. D. Lumsden acknowledging receipt of latter’s in-

terpretation of speciﬁcmionls whi_cgl is sa)tisfacbory.

Printed on Page 281 of the evidence.) .
Lett(er to A. BE. Doucet inclosing copy of his mter;;lretnti.mn.gf
srecifications and requesting to be informed whether classi

cation in his district conf?nl'x‘ls t.o.such u;terpremtmn.
i Page 252 of the evidence. 2
Lett(e}:"t?)tel?l.m:&. {;Voods stating that if after exammaiﬂi)n of
cutting classification therof appeared excessive he would not

be prepared to ignore classification made by Engineer.

(Printed on Page 292 of the evidence.)
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SYNOPSIS OF EXHIBITS—Continued.

No.

65

66
67

69
70

v

72

73

74

75

76
7

78

79

Date.

Writer,

Subject.

Sept. 23...
1909,
Feb., 11...

Feb. 25...

LIS B ORI « 5 -viin 2s

A. E. Doucet..... . ..

G. Grant

H. E. Huestis

Extract (certified) from minutes of meeting of Commissioners.
(Printed on Page 293 of the evidence.)
Sketch showing where boulders exist.
(Referred to on Page 300 ; Printed opposite Page 566.)
Letter to A. G. McFarlane stating that frozen portions of ma-
terial may, in some cases and when approved by him, be
classified as loose rock or cemented material.
(Printed on Page 322 of the evidence.)
Blue Print ‘Form 4’ showing work done to May 31, 1908,
from mile 139 to mile 150 in District F.
(Referred to on Page 334 of the evidence.) :
Letter to H. D. Lumsden stating it would be. unwise to send
out to Engineers forms with item ¢ frozen material ’ thereon.
(Printed on Page 335 of the evidence.)
Letter to A. E. Doucet stating that instructions have been given
to have the words ‘frozen material’ eliminated from form.
(Printed on Page 335 of the evidence.)
Letter (Circular) to KEngineers explaining meaning of term
‘overbreak.’
(Printed on Page 395 of the evidence.)
Letter to H. D. Lumsden stating the explanation of term ‘over-
break’ is satisfactory.
(Printed on Page 397 of the evidence.)
Photograph of cut at station 5992-5991 at La Tuque after
blasting has taken place.

(Inserted between. Pages 441 and 442 of the evidence.)
Photograph of cutatstation 6034 to 6040 after slope was dressed.
(Inserted between Pages 441 and 442 of the evidence.)
Photograph showing cut at station 6040 in the process of being

taken down to grade.
(Inserted between Pages 441 and 442 of the evidence.)
Photograph of cut at station 6040 showing other end of cut.
(Inserted between Pages 441 and 442 of the evidence.)

.|[Photograph of cut at station 6040 showing second lift.

(Inserted between Pages 442 and 443 of the evidence.)
Cross Section sheet No. 16 Residency No. 19 District ‘F’ (Fin-
al Sections.)
" (Referred to on 456 of the evidence.)
Cross Section Sheet No. 17 Residency No. 19
(Final Sections.)
(Referred to on

: P;.Ige 456 of the evidence.)
Cross Section Sheet No. 14 Residency No. 19 District ‘F’
(Final Sections.)

(Referred to on Page 463 of the evidence.)

Letter to Chairman Transcontinental Railway protesting
against the manner in which inspection was made by Arbi-
trators in Distriet ‘ F’ as being altogether inadequate and
superficial.

(Printed on Page 483 of the evidence.)
Letter to Chairman Transcontinental Railwafy
insgection of District ‘B’ made by Board o
(Printed on Page 488 of the evigence.)
Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway reporting

re overbreak classification, &e., District ¢ F.’
. (Printed on Pages 495, 501 and 502 of the evidence.)

Diagram illustrating avoidable and unavoidable overbreak.

(Printed opposite Page 500 of the evidence.)

Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway, stating
that deductions to be made on the J. B. McArthur contract,
District * ¥, for over returns in the matter of overbreak and
over classification, will be approximately $370,000.

(Printed on Page 50E of the evidence.{

Letter to Commissioners Transcontinental Railway, stating
that the amount mentioned in foregoing letter per overbreak,
&c., to be deducted is reduced to $359,488. 96.

(f’rinted on Page 506 of the evidence.)

Notes of Arbitration trip District ‘ B.’

(Printed on Page 514 of the evidence.)

District ‘F’

Com. re hasty
Arbitrators.
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SYNOPSIS OF EXHIBITS—Continued.

No.

82

83
84

86

89

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

Date.

‘Writer.

Subject.

Sketch showing grade line and surface line on profiles and il-
lustrating how errors might be made in estimating quantities
from profiles.

(Printed opposite Page 525 of the evidence.)

Letter to C. Schrieber inclosing copy of proposed agreement
as submitted by E. J. Chamberlin.

(Printed on Page 530 of the evidence.) § :
Diagram illustrating side hill work on St. Maurice River.
(Printed opposite to Page 546 of the evidence.)

Statement Engineer’s estimated quantities of solid rock, loose
rock, and common excavation ; and actual quantities of each
returned to December 31, 1909.

(Printed on Page 548 of the evidence.)

Statement showing Districts, mileages, &c., and amount of
sundry items of work done to December 31, 1909.

(Printed on Page 556 of the evidence. ) :
Letter to H. D. Lumsden stating that instructions contained
in latter’s letter of 30th January, 1908, re interpretation of
specifications, will be sent to Engineers.

(Printed on Page 563 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet requesting a reply to his letter as to

whether classification in latter’s District conforms to his in-
terpretation.

(Printed on Page 563 of the evidence.)

Letter to H. D). Lumsden stating that classification in District
‘B’ conforms to latter’s interpretation.

(Printed on Page 564 of the evidence.)

Sketch showing cross section of cemented boulders or rock in
masses.

(Printed opposite Page 566 of the evidence.)

Blue-print of imaginary cross sections, sent by H. B. Huestis

to A. K. Doucet showing loose rock, massed material and

boulders.

(Referred to on Page 576 of the evidence.)

Letter to A. E. Doucet inclosing foregoing blue-print and re-
questing to be informed how the Engineers are to be guided
if latest instructions of H. D. Lumsden are to be carried out.

(Printed on Page 576 of the evidence.)

Blue print (Sheet No. 49) District ‘B,” Div. 5, Residency 21,

showing actual measurements in prisms, overbreaks, &e.
(Referred to on Page 580 of the evidence.)

Blue-print showing cross sections at stations 5322-25 to 5338

District ‘ B,” Div. &, Residency 25.

(Referred to on Page 581 of the evidence.) A
Statement (comparative) of original and re-measured quanti-
ties in cut 5324 to 5328 Section ‘ B.’

(Printed on Page 585 of the evidence.)

.|Blue-print (3) showing cross-sections on whole of cutting at sta-

tion 6824-6830, District ‘B,’ Div. 7, Residency 28.
(Referred to on Page 587 of the evidence.)

Blue-prints (6) showing cross sections at stations 6947-6959,
District ‘B,’ Div. 7, Residency 28.

(Referred to on Page 588 of the evidence.) 8

Blue-prints (5) showing cross-sections at stations 6761-6770,
District ‘B,” Div. 7, Residency 28.

(Referred to on Page 591 of the evidence.)
Statement showing cuts mentioned by Hugh D. Lumsden.
(Printed on Page 594 of the evidence.)

Part of profile of District ‘B,” illustrating difference between
quantities calculated from surface at centre line and height
inside slope on hill-side work. :

(Referred to on Page 600 of the ev1de_nce.) ¥,

Statement (comparative) of cost of 150 miles west from Qtue ,
Bridge as between estimates of 1906 and final estimates ©
1909

Pri ted on Page 604 of the evidence.) :
Extlsac?lflmm Torongto Mail re re-construction of line T. & N.
0. Railway in vicinity of North Bay.
(Printed on Page 608 of the evidence.)
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No. Date. Writer. Subject.
1908.
102 |June 19...(J. Armstrong........... Statutory declaration re over-classification disapproving state-

ment alleged to have been made by him anent over-classifi-
cation in Quebec District.

(Printed on Page 616 of the evidence.)
LR e e et o e KRR o R Photographs (4) showing gravel or cemented material at La
uque. 3
(Inserted between Pages 625 and 626 of the evidence.)
{1 P A ] ST e o i e Photograph showing different lifts and the manner of taking
3 out a heavy, deep cutting. :
1907. (Inserted between Pages 625 and 626 of the evidence.)
105 (Feb. 8...!A. E. Hodgins. ..... ....|Circular issued to Division Engineers District ‘F,’.re over-

- break and classification of frozen material.
(Printed on Page 654 of the evidence.)

106 [Nov. 8...[S.R. Poulin............ Letter to H. D. Lumsden communicating his interpretation of
specifications.
1908. (Printed on Page 659 of the evidence.)
107 {Feb. 4 .. W N e Letter to Division Engineers inclosing copy of H. D. TLums-

den’s revised interpretation of general specifications.
(Printed on Page 666 of the evidence.)
AOB s e I S e S R Photographs (6) Residency 24, District ¢ ¥,” showing difference
. in slopes immediately after removal of material and after
completion.
(Inserted between Pages 676 ann 677 of the evidence.)
11071 e e R AR G G e Sy R T Photographs (2) showing indurated clay and loose rock.
(Inserted between Pages 676 and 677 of the evidence.)
Bl = e Bl e S e B e e e e Photograph showing indurated clay after rain.
¢ (Inserted between Pages 676 and 677 of the evidence.)
51 B RSN T o R e N i e Statement (Comparative) of Fngineers' estimate in District
*F,’ for solid rock, loose rock, common excavation and train
fill, J. D. McArthur Contract.
(Printed on Page 679 of the evidence.)
1 B R e S R R e e L S TR Statement (Comparative) of estimated cost (1906) and actual
cost of construction, McArthur Contract, District ‘ F.’
(Printed on Page 680 of the evidence.)
0 2 PRI S (R R R e e List of items omitted in Hodgins original estimate and includ-
ed in 8. R. Poulin’s estimate of January 11, 1908.
(Printed on Page 681 of the evidence. )
ERR S e o ] T e DS e AT Statement, comparison of estimated cost of construetion of C.
, P. Railway, with actual amount paid contractors.
(Printed on Page 682 of the evidence.)
IS v e S AR R S R Corrected copy of evidencegiven by S. R. Poulin before Arbi-
trators, June, 1909. -
(Printed on Page 696 of the evidence.)
5o e R 2 S S R e P e e Statement (Comparative) of estimate of Janunary 11, 1908, and
previous estimate, marked ¢ Final Location,” District ¢ F.
(Raferred to on Page 709 of the evidence.)
)b S S O e S RS S R ST Statement (Comparative) Engineer’s estimate of 1908, and cost
of construction, McArthurs’ Contract, District ¢ .’
(Printed on Page 737 of the evidence.)
2 L el SR B S TR G R List of cuttings and borrow pits in Division 5, District ¢}’
mentioned in H. D. Lumsden’s memo.
(Printed on Page 748 of the evidence.)

e o i e A e e s BT R 2 s List of cuts in Distriet ‘ F,” mentioned in H. D. Lumsden’s
memo., exclusive of Division 5.
1907. (Printed on Page 751 of the evidence.)
120 {Oct. 26...|A. R. Mathews......... Letter to A. E. Doucet (same as exhibit No. 46).

(Printed on Page 771 of the evidence.)
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: LIST OF WITNESSES

Evidence on

Pages.
4 From. To.
“Cressman, H. B........... ......... SR 5 X SRR e N e T 749-751
1 P e s L R Y e S T iy o e ha s St B Tt § Resumed 753-762
Doucet, A. E.... .. . . S T e S S VL sl oy, B P ... 42413
R SR e M S PR T SO Recalled 555-618
e, g I R S T e N R AT 8, S e T R e S e R e e " 633-641
B e e O e oS s O Y o S Pk g Co s " 732-734
Corant GO o e e OV e L el e L s e e 493-513
T T s B I S BRI LTRSS cits e W0 R e D s e v Resumed 531-554
LT e T s T e T S S A S S IR R S Y ..... Recalled T764-767
Hueatis i ol e R e e e e e, e Vs B e B L A e L R PP . 618-633
PRV TR 01 S R AR e el G (R B L L e e el R cee. 763-764
Lumsden, H. D., examined [ T B P P s o s B S SR St S - Sl 71-188
| " " 4. 6l TR R B il G Y o e et St 188-492
| i R TS S B e 514-522
" re-exainined by Mz, Chrgsler. i sasl ] isl et T a o s Ta s L S L e Y 522-531
o L L o R I e o Taiaticeoe A ) T D P DS 734-736
O Tt TR A o s o Ve e s B oty e e S S b ST, SR R e 641-719
R o B A e o B L e e e i b B B T e VR B i e T T Recalled 736-737
o e e e I R e o e R o D B e R LN " 751-753
Baohan eorge Bl o o oy e R A T e e S iy A S e O D S s 719-732
" AR e R s Ll L e 2 e N T R e R e SR Recalled 737-T49
243 O i O der e e e B g il LSRRI TR T TR ot ey ol e e S k(e T67-769
? s L L v o e g e e T B B e vis SO S A St S RS A e B e G e 769-771
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE AND DISCUSSIONS

Turspay, February 22, 1910.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the charges and allegations of
Mr. Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of the engineering staff of Districts B and

F, National Transcontinental Railway, met at eleven o’clock a.m., Mr. Geoffrion pre-

siding.
Minutes of the last meeting being read:

Mr. BARKER.—I wish: to call attention to the.fact that four clauses of my resolu-
tion calling for the production of papers were agreed to at the last meeting, but the
other portion was allowed to stand over as a notice of motion.

The Cumamyman.—I did not quite understand that the four clauses to which yon
refer were carried. I understood, but perhaps I am mistaken, that the whole resolution
was to stand as a notice of motion until our next meeting.

Mr. Barker.—Technically that was so, but at the same time the secretary was
directed to notify the commissioners that the first four clauses called for the produc-
tion of certain papers. I do not care how the matter is put in the minutes.

The CHarMAN.—Was that the understanding?

The Crerk.—It was stated that there was no objection to the papers called for
in the first four clauses. The balance of the resolution was to stand for further con-
sideration.

The CramMAN.—I do not think Mr. Barker’s motion was put and carried. I
understood that the whole motion was to be taken up this morning and discussed.
That is the reason why the minutes are so framed. However, I do not think it makes
very much ditterence. We can take up each item this morning and discuss it. Still
the minutes may be amended if Mr. Barker wishes.

'Mr. Barker.—I do n.ot wish them to be. T did not move the resolution formally.

The CHAIRMAN.—-:[ did not understand the motion was put and carried.

Mr. BARKER.—I dl‘d not say that it was formally put. When I made the motion two
or three gentlemen said there was no objection to the first four clauses, but that the
remainder should stand over until this meeting. I do not care how the matter is
expressed, but that is the understanding.

Mr. MacooNarp.—I think Mr. Barker’s statement is right. There did not seem
to be much objection to the first four clauses, but the feeling was that practically the
whole thing depended upon what Mr. Lumsden would have to say. I do not think you
put any motion, Mr. Chairman.

The CaARMAN.—Then the next business before the committee is the consideration
of Mr. Barker’s motion for the production of papers.

Mr. Barger.—Then I formally anove that resolution, sir.

The CHARMAN.—I think the committee had better take up the resolution clause
by clause and see if we approve of any one of them. _

Mr. MAcpoNALD—What is the use of discussing a motion for papers when Mr.
Lumsden is here, and he is the gentleman wh(;l hai pll'fferred the charges? We can

ant after we have heard what he has to say. ‘
4 ‘Kg I;;fg;:igecause T put my motion at the last meeting, and it has not yet

be ith. ; : : 3
en’l:i}f: ]gi‘:AIRMAN.——What is your proposition, Mr. Macdonald? Is it that you wish

61
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the committee to hear what Mr. Lumsden has to say in regard to some of these charges
before we decide whether these papers should be produced or not?

Mr. MacpoNaLD.—Speaking for myself, it seems to me that the question of what
papers we want depends entirely upon what Mr. Lumsden has to say. Of course, all
papers that are required in order to enable us to understand these charges and deal
with them the committee will have them as a matter of course. It does seem to me
as putting the cart before the horse to be ordering papers for the information of the
committee when Mr. Lumsden is here and is waiting to tell us, I have no doubt,
what he meant by these charges which were referred to us. I have no objection to
the production of all papers that can be had, but, as I say, it is starting the wrong
way.

Mr. BARKER.—Even supposing Mr. Lumsden did not attend at all, we would still
have to go on with this inquiry.

Mr. WiLson.—Is Mr. Lumsden here this morning?

Mr. Barker.—He is here.

Mr. WiLsoN.—Then let us go on.

Mr. Barker.—Either we want the papers or we do not want them.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—I move that Mr. Barker’s motion stand over until we hear Mr.
Lumsden.

The CuamrMAN.—It is moved by Mr. Macdonald that the motion of Mr. Barker
stand over until we have heard Mr. Lumsden.

Mr. LexNox.—Do you mean, Mr. Macdonald, that Mr. Barker’s motion is to stand
until we have heard Mr. Lumsden, or stand over for the present?

Mr. MacponaLp.—That is all.

Mr. CLARKE—The idea is to obtain the scope of the reference.

Mr. Lennox.—Leaving Mr. Barker’s resolution in abeyance for the present?

Mr. MACDONALD.—Yes.

The CHAIRMAN.—Mr. Smith, do you represent the Transcontinental Railway Com-
mission ? :

Mr. R. C. Smrra, K.C. (Montreal).—Yes, I represent the commission.

The CuamrMAN.—Is Mr. Lumsden here?

Mr. LumspEN.—Yes.

Mr. Barker.—Before Mr. Lumsden is examined I would like to ask if notice was
given to the Transcontinental Railway Commissioners for the production of papers?

The Crerx.—Yes. I understood that the first four paragraphs of Mr. Barker’s
motion were agreed to in order that papers would be produced. I have not received the
papers asked for.

Mr. Barker.—You notified the commissioners, but have received no papers?

The CLERK.—Yes.

Mr. Barger.—Very well.

Mr. Lennox.—It was mentioned the other day that the two parties concerned
should be represented by counsel. Mr. Smith, I understand, appears for the commis-
sioners?

The CHAIRMAN.—Yes.

Mr. LenNxox.—We have not yet asked whether Mr. Lumsden is represented by
counsel.

The CHARMAN.—Mr. Lumsden, are you represented by counsel?

Mr. LumspeN.—I am not.

Mr. Lexnox.—In that case, T submit to the committee that it would be quite in
accordance with what we said the other day that it would be advisable at this inquiry
to have both sides represented by counsel.

. The CuamyMaN—If Mr. Lumsden so desires, he is at liberty to have counsel,

Mr. Lumspen.—I have nothing to say as to that. I do not want counsel.

Mr. LexNox.—I understand Mr. Lumsden to say he has no counsel, I infer from
that he probably does not propose to have counsel, and while the interest of Mr. Lums-
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den is of importance of course it is of comparatively little importance as compared
with the interests of the country. It is right, and I think the members of the com-
mittee will agree in that view, that there should be some one charged with the duty
of seeing that the evidence material to this investigation is brought out and presented
in succint form to the committee. It was intimated to the committee the other day
that it would be of great advantage to have counsel, and I think it will be our duty

to make arrangements now for counsel to appear and see that all evidence is brought
out, whatever attitude Mr. Lumsden may take.

Mr. WiLsoN.—We cannot force Mr. Lumsden to have counsel.

Mr. Lesxox.—I do not propose to forece Mr. Lumsden or any one to have counsel,
I am not greatly concerned about Mr. Lumsden in the matter, what I say is this: who
represents the public interest in this matter? There should be counsel appointed;
what I submit is this that Mr. Smith appears here to represent the commission and
the commission represents the government. A statement has been made by Mr. Lums-
den which reflects upon the management and construction of this railway.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—It does not reflect upon the management and construction of the
railway at all, but upon the engineers.

Mr. LENNOX —It reflects upon the manner in which this railway is constructed,
I prefer to use my own language.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—You may think so, but that is not what Mr. Lumsden says, he
speaks about engineers.

Mr. Lexnox.—He speaks about a certain number of engineers, the commission
is responsible for the class of engineers that they employ, to employ competent and

honest engineers. The commission may be able to show that they are absolutely
blameless in this matter.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—The commissioners are not on trial here, and there is no use
in your saying so.

Mr. Lexnox.—I have not said so.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—You say they are responsible.

Mr. Lexnox.—It will be just as well for us to give each member of the com-
mittee the liberty to express his ideas in his own way, Mr. Macdonald usually claims
that privilege to himself and I will take the same liberty.

Mr. MacpoNarp.—That is so, and T hope I am not interfering with the expres-
sion of your views in that way, but when you say the Transcontinental Commission
is on trial here I say they are not.

Mr. LExNox.—I have not said that, but I repeated it that when Mr. Lumsden says
a number of the engineering staff have disobeyed his instructions and that a wrong
classification exists it is a reflection upon the manner in which this railway is con-
structed. That commission is responsible for it in the first place and when they are
responsible the government is responsible, they being responsible to the government.
The government side of it is therefore represented by Mr. Smith, but the public interest
is not represented.

Mr. WinsoN.—I understood that the public interest is well represented by the
committee here; you will be at full liberty to examine and cross-examine Mr. Lums-
den as you wish.

Mr. LENNox.—As far as the committee is concerned I assume that the committee
will represent both sides of it, the interests of the public and the interests of the
government as far as they possibly can. But in order that both sides may be fairly
represented I submit that there should be counsel engaged who will have the duty of
brmgmg forward such evidence as the members of the committee may be prepared to
hear in the course of the investigation as we proceed. I submit also that until that
is done we are not in a position to go on.

Mr. SmitH, K.C.—Allow me to say one word, of course I do not propose to
apologize for my presence here at all, but I did imagine that I represented the pubhc
interests. No charge has been preferred against the commission, but the commission
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desires as full inquiry as possible in order to fix the responsibility if these charges are
well founded, and to fix the responsibility for these unfortunate things that exist; and
while I should be delighted that counsel should represent any other interest, or should
represent Mr. Lumsden’s interest, to which I am not objecting in the least, T must
say that I have not conceived it my duty to come here to defend the commission
against any charges because I am not aware that any charges have been preferred
against them. But if in the course of the investigation I can help the committee in a
humble way in getting at the facts my instructions are to make the inquiry, within
the scope of the reference, as full as possible in order to fix the responsibility if any
exists.

Mr. BarkER.—As I understand Mr. Smith he considers himself appointed by the
commission to represent the interests of the public; I for one as a member of the
committee think that would be narrowing very much this inquiry.

Mr. WiLsoN.—I understand that Mr. Lumsden has made some charges, or some
reflections against some engineers, and I for one will be delighted if Mr. Lumsden is
represented by counsel and that the party or parties against whom he has laid com-
plaints be also represented, but when you talk about counsel to represent ¢ the public’
that seems to me a very vague word.

Mr. BARKER.—Mr. Smith has used that word.

Mr. CroTHERS.—It seems to me that in an investigation of this size, there are
two sides. Certain statements have been made by the chief engineer of the Trans-
continental railway and this committee is appointed to investigate them. Now, both
sides of politics are represented on this committee and we are all probably in the same
boat, in that respect it will be as fair as possible, but we all know sufficient of politi-
cians to know that four members of this committee will follow one way and three will
follow the other way. We all know that one side of this investigation will attempt to
show and desire to show that the charges made by Mr. Lumsden are not well founded—

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—No, no.

Mz, CroTHERS.—Yes, and the other side I think will desire to show that they are
well founded. A lawyer will know well enough, Mr. Macdonald and Mr. Wilson will
know, that no lawyer can represent two sides of a question and represent it properly.
We all know that the truth can best be brought out if there is an examination, an
examiner-in-chief and a cross-examiner. That is the principle of all investigation.
I have had something to do with investigations myself and I always encourage the
appointment of counsel by any one who wished to have a representative, in order to
bring out the truth. We cannot help it, there are two sides upon any point, those on
the one side striving in one direction and those on the other side striving in the other
direction. No one lawyer can bring it all out, we understand that, and it is necessary
in the interests of the public that we should have counsel on each side.

The CHARMAN.—I think this is a very peculiar position. There are two sides, as
Mr. Crothers says; I understand that one side is Mr. Lumsden making a charge
against other parties, and the other side is the other parties who are accused by Mr.
Lumsden. We ask Mr. Lumsden if he wants any counsel and he says: ‘No,Tdo not
want any counsel.” Now, who is the other party? The other side is the parties who
are accused by Mr. Lumsden of having disobeyed his orders. Now, if they are here
and want to be represented by counsel, T for one see no reason why their request
should not be complied with. In that case we would -undoubtedly have both sides
represented, on the one hand is Mr. Lumsden making the charge and on the other hand
the parties who arq accused, if they both want to be represented by counsel I should
be delighted for them to have as many counsel as they choose. That is the way I
understand it, but of course I am in the hands of the committee about that. I do not
know how we can now go on and assign counsel to anybody who is not in the case.
I do not think that the government, the commission or anybody else are parties to the
case except Mr. Lumsden on the one hand and the engineers accused by him on the
other. That is the way I understand the case stands.
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Mr. CroTHERS.—I have had some experience of similar cases; I remember one
where a man had made a confession over his own signature and over the signature of
his counsel, who now occupies a prominent position as a magistrate. A commission
was afterwards appointed to investigate the charges, and they refused counsel on the
one side, and the result was the evidence was not brought out and although the man
had confessed over his own signature and over the signature of his cousel to certain
facts the commission found those facts did not exist at all.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—We are discussing a matter which for the moment is entirely
beside the question. As a member of the legal profession, I am always in favour of
having parties before a tribunal represented by counsel; first because it is a good thing
for the profession, secondly when you happen to be a member of that tribunal the
fact that you have counsel before you relieves you of a good deal of work, both of
which are very important considerations if there were no other. In this particular
case our friend, Mr, Lumsden, comes here and he makes statements to the commission
with reference to certain engineers, and the House of Commons has referred to this
committee the task of inquiring into these statements. Now Mr. Lumsden is present
and I think we ought to hear what he has to say. Let him state whether anybody in
particular has done anything wrong and that he wants to investigate these charges.
Then I should think we would say: ¢That is all right. Mr. Lumsden you have told
us what you want to say and what you want to do, and you ought to have counsel
appointed, and the people you accuse ought to have counsel.” That would be my idea.

Mr. Croraers.—I think the parties are not Mr. Lumsden and his engineers. The
two sides are the people and these engineers. The engineers are represented by counsel.
Who is representing the people? Mr. Lumsden ?

Mr. MacpoNALD.—I am saying that Mr. Lumsden ought to have counsel.

Mr. Croruers.—He says he does not want counsel.

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—Then let us hear what he has to say.

Mr. CroruErs.—But he says he does not want to have counsel.

Mr. MacpoxarLp.—We want to hear what he has to say about these charges.

Mr. CroruERS.—It appears to me that if there is to be counsel, now is the time
to appoint him. Counsel ought to hear what every witness says, he does not want to
come in at the close of the proceedings. If there is to be counsel he should be here at
the very beginning of the evidence and not after the most important testimony has
been taken.

Mr. Lexyxox.—With reference to your statement a few mi
man, Mr. Lumsden is the party on one side,—

The CuamMAN.—Then we should not refuse him counsel.

Mr. LexNox.—He has said himself that he does not want counsel. Now Mr.
Lumsden is not a party in any shape or sense to these proceedings. Mr. Lumsden
was an engineer and he saw fit to resign an office carrying with it a salary of $6,000.
He threw up his position for reasons which appear to me to be good; they may be
good or they may not be. Now the Commission are responsible for the engineers

that it employs and the government is responsible for the acts-of the Commission
itself and you cannot get away from the fact; it is a charge against the government.

Mr. Macponatp.—Not at all. What is the good of talking like that? We can
argue that out when we go to the House.

Mr. LexvNox.—Just a moment if my honourable friend will allow me at this
stage. I say the Commission is responsible for the acts of the engineers which it
employs. If it employs incompetent or dishonest engineers it is responsible. If-it
turns out there is nothing in these charges at all, and the Commission is absolutely
blameless, it is to its interest to establish the fact. It is to the Commission’s interest,
if there has been any wrong-doing at all, to fight every statement that Mr. Lumsden
makes and for that purpose the Commission has its counsel here. I say that the Com-
mission represents the government; the government is on trial in this matter and
the public is on the other side.

3—5

nutes ago, Mr. Chair-
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Mr. MacpoNALD.—Mr. Lennox, I am prepared to vote with you for everybody to
have counsel so you need not argue that point. Mr. Lumsden is here. Let him state
what he wants counsel to try. The moment he tells us, I would say, let us have it.

Mr, Lexnox.—Mr. Macdonald is not so dense as he pretends.

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—I am pretty dense on your proposition, I cannot see it at all.

Mr. Lexxox.—If I can make my object clear to the chairman and if not to him
to the public, I shall have done my duty. What I claim is this: the public have an
interest in ascertaining whether these charges are true or not, and we say that it is
altogether irrelevant whether Mr. Lumsden takes one position or the other. The
public ought to be represented in this investigation and it is our duty—mnot because
any one claims to have counsel—but it is our duty as a committee before any pro-
ceedings are taken to see that counsel be appointed who will take upon himself the
duty of seeing that all the evidence bearing upon this matter is properly brought
out. In that way we shall insure that justice shall be done. That is the position I
take in this matter.

Mr. Barker.—I would like to add a few words to my friend’s statement. As I
understand it, Mr. Lumsden in tendering his resignation to the Commissioners made
certain allegations which the government considered grave and which demanded in-
vestigation. If Mr. Lumsden to-day signed a paper retracting every word he said that
would not relieve us from going on with this investigation. Now what position are
we in? If there is a charge such as referred to in the order of reference it is against
the commissioners, nobody can doubt that and yet they appoint the only counsel here,
that is to say the gentlemen against whom the charges have been levelled.

Mr. MacpoNaLD.—Again I say that you are arguing about the something that
nobody is objecting to, everybody is perfectly willing to have counsel.

Mr, Barker.—It will not hurt you to hear what I have to say. The gentlemen
who are under these charges, without consulting this committee, without asking our
approval, appoint a gentleman as they claim to represent the public. That is what
the legal representative of the Commissioners said he was employed here for. If you
want a one-sided investigation say so and we will know where we are.

Mr. WiLsox.—You wanted the public to be represented a few minutes ago.

Mr. BargEr—I agree entirely in what Mr, Lennox and Mr. Crothers have said
and I do not want to indulge in unnecessary repetition; they put the case exactly as
I regard it. The public demand and want an investigation. Very well, let us have
an investigation, but do not have it so that those against whom the charges are laid
will run the whole business.

Mr. Winsox.—I think we must confine ourselves to the scope of what is before
us and not go outside the order of reference. That reference states that we are to
investigate the allegations and charges of Hugh D. Lumsden against a portion of
the engineering staff of the Transcontinental Railway. Is it pretended that the
Commissioners or the government are responsible? I do not see the slightest refer-
ence to any charge against the government, or the Commissioners themselves; their
names are not mentioned as being charged with anything wrong. If there were any
charges against the government, or against any members of the government, or
against the Commissioners, they should have been made in the House. What we are
here to investigate are the charges of Mr. Lumsden against a portion of the staff
and that is all. That is my view of it.

The CuamryaN.—I entirely agree with Mr. Wilson. That is the stand I have
taken before and therefore I should be in favour of asking Mr. Lumsden a few ques-
tions. If he wishes to be represented by counsel we will be very glad to grant his
desire. But I think that we should have Mr. Lumsden sworn and hear what he has
got to say about these charges. Then we shall be in a position to form an opinion
as to the desirability of engaging other counsel.

Mr. LeNxxox.—I propose to submit a motion upon this question. I move that we
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do not proceed further with this matter until arrangements have been made to con-
duct the investigation and prove the charges, if capable of proof.

Mr. MacpoxALD.—I move in amendment, seconded by Mr. Clarke, that Mr. Lums-
den be heard first and that on hearing his statement the committee reserves to itself
the right to decide whether he or any other parties be represented by counsel.

Mr. WirsoNn.—Hayving heard Mr. Lumsden’s declaration that he does not want
counsel, will you add that Mr. Macdonald?

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—Well, that is understood, I suppose. I will move, Mr. Chair-
man that the committee proceed to hear what statement Mr. Lumsden has to make and
on hearing him, in view of his having stated that he does not desire counsel, will de-

termine what parties if any should be represented by counsel in order to best ascer-
tain the full facts. -

Question put by the chairman.

Mr. LENNox.—Just a moment, Mr, Chairman, it is difficult to know just where we

are at. Before there was any time for anybody to do anything Mr. Macdonald moved

what he called an amendment. I think it was moved before my motion was seconded,
so it is a little dificult to know where we are at.

Mr. MacpoNarp.—Is there anybody going to second your motion ?

Mr. LexNox.—T think so.

The Coamman.—If there is no motion there cannot be an amendment to it and
therefore you cannot vote on the amendment.

Mr. Lexxox.—I will put my motion in writing.

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—Mr. Lumsden who originates this whole matter comes here ap-

parently ready to tell us everything, he is here, and he says, ‘I do not want counsel, I

am ready to speak. &
Mr. CroTHERS.—HHe is not on trial.

Mr. MacpoNaLb.—I do not see why it should be assumed that the Commission
should be taking the part of the engineers against whom the charges have heen made
any more than they should be taking Mr. Lumsden’s part; they stand in an independ-
ent position, the parties on either side are all employees of the Commissicn whose duty
it is to fasten the blame, if there is any blame, on the responsible party. Mr. Lums-
den’s charges are against certain engineers of the staff, and until we know what his
charges are we cannot tell what it is we have to investigate or who the parties on the
other side are.

Mr. Barker.—Mr. Lumsden is here in response to a summons from this com-
mittee to give evidence.
Mr. WiLson.—He is summoned here as the originator of those charges. 1
Mr. Lexyox.—I have reduced my motion to writing in this form:

Moved by Mr. Lennox, seconded by Mr. Crothers that we do not proceed with
this investigation until counsel has been engaged on behalf of the public in order
that the facts may be fully elicited, it having been announced that Mr. Smith

appears as counsel for the Commission, and Mr. Lumsden appearing without
counsel.

The CaarMAN.—You have heard the motion.
Mr. MacponaLp.—I beg to move in amendment, seconded by Mr. Clarke.

Resolved that the committee proceed to hear what statement Mr. Lumsden
has to make, and on hearing him, in view of his having stated that he does not
desire counsel, will determine what parties if any should be represented by coun-
sel, in order to best ascertain the full facts,

The CuARMAN.—Is it the pleasure of the committee to adopt the amendment ¢
Carried.
Mr. LENNox.—Yeas and nays.
(Committee divided).—Yeas 3, nays 3. y
3—b3% 2
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; The CHAIRMAN.—I vote Yea, and declare the amendment carried and the motion
ost. - .

Mr. BARKER.—I now move that we adjourn.

The CHamMAN.—You have heard the motion, gentlemen?

Mr. Barger.—I make that motion because there is no one here to conduct the
examination of Mr. Lumsden as counsel on behalf of the public interests.

The CuAmrMAN.—But Mr. Lumsden I suppose has the right to say what he wants,
he has the right to be heard here.

Mr. BaRgER.—I do not know what Mr. Lumsden wants.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—Allow me. Mr. Lumsden is here, and the Chairman asked him
if he wanted counsel. He replied, ‘ No” Now he is ready to go on and make a state-
ment and I think it is only fair to the committee to hear what he has to say; he may
be anxious to do so, and although in fact he does refuse to have counsel he may have
a statement that he desires to make and it may be very short, T do not know anything
about that, but why adjourn the committee and not hear what he has to say when Mr.
Lumsden is right here and ready to speak?

Mr. Lexyox.—I will second Mr. Barker’s motion, and in doing so I want to sub-
mit to you some reasons why I think we ought to adjourn. We are at the threshold
of this inquiry and I want if possible to proceed with a reasonable degree of harmony,
of course. First of all you realize this is a very important stage in the proceedings, it

»is the initial stage which is always a very important stage of the proceedings, and we
may be right in the position which we take as the minority of the committee, or we
may be wrong; we are taking at the outset the position that we have in perfect good
faith, we do not want to take any extreme position, we want to remain on this com-
mittee and assist in disposing of the work of this committee.

The statements made in the House indicated that there would be a very narrow
range of inquiry. Well, we have consented to become members of this committee and
do the best we can. What position we can take in case counsel cannot be procured,
1 do not know. You have already intimated that anybody can secure counsel. What
I have submitted this morning is that the country should employ counsel. What I
suggest to you is this: We will adjourn for to-day in order that all of us shall have
an opportunity of considering carefully this situation and what attitude we can assume.
T second the motion of Mr. Barker in that view. He did not state any reason as to
why he wished the committee to pursue that course. As far as I can infer, I presume
it is in order that we might see whether it is possible that counsel can still be obtained
or what position the minority of the committee will take under the circumstances.
Therefore, I second the motion, and I trust the committee will not have to divide,
but that the majority will agree with the minority in this matter.

Mr. MacponaLp.—L. really cannot understand my honourable friend’s motion. I
want to have it distinetly understood, as the mover of that amendment, that instead
of being opposed to it, I agree to Mr. Lumsden, or the engineers, or anybody else
whose name may be mentioned here in any way, being represented by counsel. I am
free to say I am disposed to favour that at all times. The motion of my honourable
friends, Messrs. Barker and Lennox, must not be construed by anybody that, in so
far as T am concerned, having moved the amendment, there is the slightest disposition
on my part—and I do not think there is any on the part of my friends who vote with
me in this matter—to refrain from allowing counsel for Mr. Lumsden or any one else
that ought to be so represented in the public interests. But here we have had a refer-
.ence from the House by resolution of certain charges, and we invite Mr. Lumsden to

‘be present for the purpose of hearing what he has to say in regard to them. Mr.
Lumsden has been here through all these proceedings this morning. My friend, the
-chairman, endeavoured at the very inception of this meeting to allow Mr. Lumsden
to tell us what he desires to tell us, and he never had a chance to do it up to this
-minute. I would say that the question of looking into and investigating anything Mr.
Lumsden has to say, or his being represented, or the public interest being represented
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by counsel is an eminently proper matter for consideration. But I say it would be a
most absurd thing, and everybody will regard it in that way, to have Mr. Lumsden
sitting here without being allowed to make one single statement. The gentleman does
not want to be represented by counsel, and all T say is before we adjourn this meeting
let us hear what he has to say. This committee would be making a farce of the in-
vestigation if it did not ask Mr. Lumsden to tell us everything he desires to state, or
what position he will take in this inquiry. I think that everybody will agree that is
what we ought to do before we adjourn. When we know what position Mr. Lumsden
is taking, when we know what he wants to say or to do, then we can act intelligibly;
and, if counsel is necessary, let us have counsel, and do everything that the publiz
interest requires. We cannot gag Mr. Lumsden, and ought not to gag him; let us hear
what he is going to say.

- Mr. CrotHERS.—We are not in the position that we should begin the investigation,
begin perhaps to examine the most important witness of the whole inquiry with
counsel on one side and none on the other.

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—That is not the.position, Mr. Crothers.

Mr. Croruers.—Pardon me; I did not interrupt my learned friend. Mr. Maec-
donald says we have a most important witness, probably the most important witness——

Mr. Macpoxarp.—I did not put it in that way.

Mr. CroraeErs.—No; but you will admit it, T suppose. The proposition is to hear
this most important witness, and afterwards we are to settle whether we ought to have
counsel or not. The time to determine whether we are to have counsel, if at all, is now;
and as it would appear that there is only one counsel, it seems to me as only reasonable
that the minority of the committee—that the whole of us, in fact—should have an
oppertunity of considering the stand we would take in view of this new condition which
has arisen this morning. It seems to me that that is not unreasonable. There is only
the one witness awaiting a hearing, as I understand it, and he lives in the city, so that
no great inconvenience will arise by the postponement of the hearing for a few hours.

Mr. Crarxe—TI think it would be most unfair to enter upon an elaborate exami-
nation of Mr. Lumsden until notice is given to engineers who are charged by him: I
think the parties in question ought to be known, ought to be notified, and be represented
here and accorded the opportunity of hearing the examination of Mr. Lumsden in
detail. T think that should be done in the case of all the engineers interested, because
they are the persons charged. It is according to the first rule of British justice that
the accused should have a right to be heard and to hear what is being said against him.
But I think the duty of the committee is to find out first who are the persons charged
and what the charges are. Then let them be notified and appear here before the
committee. I think we ought to do that at once.

Mr. WiLsox.—You want.Mr. Lumsden to announce his charges, so that we may
know what they are?

The Cramrymax.—Mr. Lennox, do you insist upon your motion?

Mr. Lexvox.—Yes; but it is not my motion, it is Mr. Barker’s.

The Cmamaman.—Will you please put it in writing?

Mr. Lexyox.—You will remember, Mr. Chairman, that the other day the opinion
was expressed that the commission and Mr. Lumsden will no doubt be represented by
counsel, and that was desirable. It was also stated that we had better not meet until
Wednesday, because the Commission would be engaged in Quebec or somewhere else,
and I suggested, in order to facilitate matters, that we should have this preliminary
meeting to-day. It was intended partly, not altogether, as an organization meeting,
and to probably ascertain the situation to some extent. Now, we do not want a long
adjournment, we only want an adjournment until to-morrow.

Mr. MacpoNaLp.—For what purpose, Mr. Lennox? :

Mr. Lexvox. It is not right in a large matter such as this, where enormous in-
terests are involved, to have counsel on one side and not on the other.

Mr. MacpoNaLp—We will not let Mr. Smith be heard.
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Mr. Lexxox.—I do not think Mr. Smith will say anything, I am not afraid of
that at all. What I am saying is that before we begin this investigation the public
ought to be represented by counsel. If Mr. Lumsden had brought counsel here—
and it was anticipated that he would—then we might say that the public’s side of
the question was represented, but Mr. Lumsden says that he is not represented by
counsel and does not want to be. Now, sir, it is our duty not to represent any one body
or section but to represent the public in this matter and in doing that we should see
that this matter is started properly, and T submit to you, Mr. Chairman, we ought not
to be compelled to go on with this matter to-day. That is the first branch. Now
‘on the other hand the second branch is that this minority has a right by reason of the
fact that we are taken by surprise by Mr. Lumsden not having counsel, that the min-
ority has the right to have time to consider the sitnation.

Mr. MacpoNaLb.—We thought so too, we thought that, but he wants to go on and
tell us something without having counsel, and then we will see whether it is worth
while, whether an adjournment ought not to be allowed.

Mr. LENNOX.—As a matter of courtesy we ought to be allowed to adjourn the
meeting until to-morrow to consider the position we will take in this matter; I will
put it to the Chairman in that way if he does not entertain it on other grounds

Mr. MacpoNaLD.—That is the strongest ground you have offered yet, that is your
best argument, so far.

Mr. Lexxox.—I do not care so long as I protect the public interest. Having, as
you suggest made the best argument, I wish to repeat and emphasize that argument
that we want time in order to consider what position we will take. We would like to
have that as a special grace.

The CuarMaN.—If you put it that way of course, that is different.

Mr.: LExNox.—I will put it that way and ask you to adjourn the meetmg for
to-day.

The CHAIRMAN.—When would you adjourn to, to-morrow, Wednesday or Friday?

Mr. LexNox.—I do not think it will make any difference.

The CualrMAN.—Well, let it go on to-morrow.

Mr. MacpoNALD.—Why not let Mr. Lumsden make the statement he wants, do not
ask any questions and let it stand over, so that if there is anything to be done it can
be done.

Mr. Lesxnox.—I think there will be. opportunity for him to do that to-morrow
and we will then have considered our situation. An adjournment until to-morrow
is what we ask for.

The CHARMAN.—Of course it is against my judgment that we should send back
Mr. Lumsden, whom we summoned here, and who is really, I know, ready to make a
statement, but of course——

Mr. Barger.—We do not know even that much.

The CuamrMAN.—Of co